g
g

Exeter City Council

To the Chair and Members
of the Scrutiny Committee - Community

Philip Bostock, Chief Executive

Bindu Arjoon, Assistant Chief Executive

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN
Tel: 01392 277888 www.exeter.gov.uk

Direct dial: 01392 265107
Fax: 01392 265268
email: howard.bassett@exeter.gov.uk

Our ref:
Your ref:

AGENDA FOR

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY

The Scrutiny Committee - Community will meet on TUESDAY 10 MARCH 2009, commencing at

5.30 pm, in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter to consider the following business.

If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett, Member

Services Officer on Exeter 265107.

Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.

Pages

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present

MINUTES

To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2009.

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Councillors are reminded of the need to declare personal and prejudicial
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests, in relation to business
on the agenda, before any discussion takes place on the item. Councillors
requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer prior to the

day of the meeting.




LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To pass the following resolution:-

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the

press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of items 21
and 22 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Act.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 19

A period of up to 15 minutes will be set aside to deal with questions to the
Committee from members of the public.

Details of questions should be notified to the Assistant Chief Executive at least
three working days prior to the meeting. Further information and a copy of the
procedure are available from Member Services (01392 265115) also on the
Council web site.

http.//www.exeter.qgov.uk/scrutinyquestions

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING
ORDER 20

To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio
Holders.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE

10

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 2009 - 2039

To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated.

HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2009 -2015

To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated.

DRAFT EMPTY HOMES STRATEGY 2009 - 2014

To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL POLICY - ANNUAL REVIEW

To consider the report of the Head of Environmental Health Services — report
circulated

EXETER AIR QUALITY STRATEGY 2009-2014

To consider the report of the Head of Environmental Health Services — report
circulated.

15-16

17 - 22

23-24




MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY

11

12

SPLASH HOLIDAY PLAY SCHEME

The following petition, of approximately 428 signatories, was submitted to Council
on 24 February 2009 by Councillor Martin.

“We, the undersigned, do not believe that Exeter City Council should be
considering closing the Splash Holiday Play Scheme.”

The petition was referred to this Committee.

Unfortunately the Splash scheme has now ended with the last scheme being run
by the City Council during this February half term. We have been touched by the
support and praise for Splash. Great efforts were made right up to the last minute
to reinstate partnership funding for the scheme but with the exception of the offer
of a modest contribution by Devon County Council, none was forthcoming.
Notice was therefore given on 26 January to Devon County Council as Children’s
Services Authority that the February scheme would be the last run by the City
Council.

This was the minimum amount of notice we felt we could provide to allow the
County Council to tell parents that the scheme was ending and to inform them
about alternative provision for holiday childcare. We have offered to share our
knowledge and experience of running Splash with any new provider that Devon
County Council might commission. Our £10,000 contribution to the costs of the
scheme has been retained in the budget to help support any sustainable
replacement scheme that might be developed. The petition will be forwarded to
Devon County Council so that they are aware of the strength of feeling from
parents and families in Exeter.

LEGION WAY HOUSING SCHEME

A petition of 39 signatures against the redevelopment of the grassed area on
Legion Way, Alphington and the proposal to develop four units of social housing
for rent was submitted to the Council meeting on 24 February 2009 by Councillor
Newcombe. The petition was referred to this Committee. A response to this
petition is as follows:

In July 2006 Members agreed a report setting out the Council’s proposal to
identify and assess a number of Council owned land sites, mainly within existing
housing estates, that could potentially be developed for new affordable rented
housing. Sites would be developed in partnership with a Housing Association.

The reason for adopting this policy was to help increase the overall supply of
affordable housing across the City in response to rising demand from households
on the Exeter Home Choice register. The need for such developments has
become even greater as the housing market has slowed over recent months and
the supply of affordable housing through Section 106 agreements has dried up.




13

14

15

16

17

The project has progressed well over the intervening period with a number of
sites now at an advanced stage. In some cases, scheme designs are well
advanced and consultation meetings have been held with local residents.

The proposed development of four social rented units at Legion Way forms part
of this project. The scheme that is currently under consideration includes the
provision of two three-bedroom disabled units and two one-bedroom flats on a
piece of land within the curtilage of the existing estate.

At a consultation meeting with local residents held on Wednesday 18 February
2009, local residents raised a number of concerns regarding this proposal.
Officers listened carefully to their concerns and are now working with the
architects, the housing association and Planning Services to review this scheme
and address residents concerns.

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE COUNCIL'S ARRANGEMENTS FOR
MANAGING RISKS FROM WASTE MANAGEMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE

To consider the report of the Head of Environmental Health Services — report
circulated.

RE-TENDERING OF THE HOUSING RESPONSIVE MAINTENANCE
CONTRACTS

To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated.

PORCH : PROLIFIC OFFENDERS RE-SETTLEMENT THROUGH CO-
ORDINATED HOUSING

To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated.

ALLOTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW

To consider the report of the Head of Contracts and Direct Services — report
circulated.

SWIMMING POOL WORKING GROUP

To receive feedback on progress from the Swimming Pool Working Group as
requested at Council on 24 February 2009.

25-38

39-42

43 - 44

45 - 58

PERFORMANCE MONITORING

18

19

STEWARDSHIP - COMMUNITY TO DECEMBER 2008

To consider the joint report of the Director Community and Environment and the
Head of Treasury Services — report circulated.

STEWARDSHIP - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT TO DECEMBER 2008

To consider the joint report of the Director Community and Environment and the
Head of Treasury Services — report circulated.

59 - 66

67 -70




20 NATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATOR RESULTS 2007/08 HOW EXETER'S
RESULTS COMPARE

To consider the report of the Director Community and Environment — report 71-74
circulated.

(Please bring the copy of Performance Indicator Results previously sent to you by
the Policy Unit)

Part Il : Items suqggested for discussion with the press and public excluded

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE

21 EXTRALET SCHEME PROGRAMME REPORT AND RESTRUCTURE
To consider the report of the Head of Housing Services — report circulated to 75 -82
Members.

22 RAMM AND THE RENNAISSANCE PROGRAMME

To consider the report of the Head of Leisure and Museums — report circulated to 83 - 86
Members.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next Scrutiny Committee - Community will be held on Tuesday 2 June
2009 at 5.30 pm

FUTURE BUSINESS

The schedule of future business proposed for this Scrutiny Committee and
other Committees of the Council can be viewed on the following link to the
Council’s website:http://www.exeter.gov.uk/forwardplan

Councillors can view a hard copy of the schedule in the Members Room.

Membership -
Councillors D Baldwin (Chair), Shiel (Deputy Chair), Branston, Choules, Mrs Danks, A Hannaford,

Hobden, Newcombe, Newton, R Smith, Taghdissian, Thompson and Wardle

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site
http://www.exeter.gov.uk. This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting. Alternatively, contact the Member
Services Officer on (01392) 265115 for further information.




Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111.

Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us
know. Contact Member Services 01392 265197 or email member.services@exeter.gov.uk




1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agenda ltem 6

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXECUTIVE
24 MARCH 2009

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 2009-2039

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform Members of the outcome of the annual review of the Housing Revenue
Account Business Plan.

INTRODUCTION

All local authorities which have retained their housing stock have a statutory obligation

to produce a 30 year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan that is passed as
fit for purpose’ by their local Government Office. The plan sets out the financial position
for the HRA and apportions funding to both revenue and capital spending. The plan also
sets out the services priorities in terms of service improvements and capital investment.

The current HRA Business Plan has been reviewed to ensure financial models and
funding predictions match current levels of subsidy and other income. The current
review has been undertaken following receipt of the draft HRA subsidy determinations
for 2009/10. The total finance available has been checked against our housing capital
programme, including the Decent Homes Programme, to ensure sufficient resources are
available to meet these commitments. The levels of capital resources available, and the
investment plans for the housing stock are set out in detail in the Housing Asset
Management Strategy (see separate agenda item).

2006-2036 HRA BUSINESS PLAN

Following the Options Appraisal exercise in 2004/05 the Council committed enough
housing capital resources to ensure that we not only met the Decent Homes Standard
by 2010, but also a higher ‘Exeter Standard’ by 2015. This was agreed with residents
following extensive consultation and the Government Office for the South West
(GOSW). The Options Appraisal was signed off by the GOSW in July 2005.

The 2006—2036 Business Plan predicted that the HRA will continue to make a surplus
over the lifetime of the plan. This surplus would be used to maintain and, where
possible, increase reserves and to make significant revenue contributions (almost £2
million per annum by 2015) to the housing capital programme. It also predicted that our
HRA Subsidy contribution to central Government would remain at or around £3.3 million
per annum.

Despite this, the plan also predicted that the amount of capital resources available
would fall short of the expenditure required by 2008/09. At that time we planned that this
shortfall would be made up by improved procurement of materials and the use of some
reserves. This has proved to be the case. However, the plan also recognised that the
level of shortfall would rise significantly by 2015 when any future capital programme
would need to be severely reduced, unless other means of funding the programme
could be found.

Page 1



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

2009-2039 HRA BUSINESS PLAN

Since the publication of previous Business Plan the amount of finance available for the
housing service has changed considerably and a full review of the situation has been
undertaken by officers and residents on the Tenants and Leaseholders Committee
(TALC). The result of this review is outlined in this report and the separate Housing
Asset Management Strategy report elsewhere on the agenda.

The biggest impact on the amount of finance available has been the change to the
Council’s subsidy payment to central Government. The 2007/08 HRA Subsidy
Determination produced a dramatic increase in our subsidy contributions from £3.3
million per annum to £4.4 million. In 2009/10 this will rise again to £4.7 million with
further increases predicted, year on year, to approximately £5.6 million by 2015.

This change has affected the level of revenue contributions we are able to make to the
capital programme (now reduced to approximately £800k in 2008/09) and meant a
greater use of reserves to maintain the capital programme at sustainable levels. The
Council’'s HRA reserves will reduce to approximately £1.8 million in 2009 and £1.5
million in 2010 to provide additional support to the capital programme. It is not
recommended that these reserves are allowed to fall any further to ensure we have
sufficient funds available to meet unexpected or emergency expenditure.

At the same time rents, although increasing above inflation, will not reach target rent
therefore denying the HRA further resources. The level of capital receipts from Right to
Buy sales has now reached an all time low and Government rules on the use of these
receipts now mean we are only allowed to keep 25%, with the remainder being ‘pooled’
nationally. Historic receipts, accrued over many years, have been spent on decent
homes investment in the housing stock. Finally, income from the interest on our
investments has declined as interest rates have fallen and the size of our reserves has
reduced. The full set of HRA estimates for the 30-year business plan period are
attached as Appendix I.

At the time of writing this report the Council received information via a third party that
ministers are considering a change to the way interest is charged to the HRA. This
change would seek to treat negative subsidy authorities (as per Exeter) in the same way
as positive subsidy authorities and is likely to have a positive effect on our HRA subsidy
calculation. Any change in the Council’s housing finances will be considered once their
full effect is known and if significant will be reported back to members.

Following a comprehensive review of the Council’'s housing assets (both stock and land
holdings), in particular the condition of the housing stock and its surrounding areas, the
levels of cyclical work, planned maintenance and major improvements are forecast to
increase. The current information from the stock condition survey database, other
individual surveys such as those undertaken during the annual improvement programme
and responsive maintenance data all show that the level of maintenance and
improvement work required is far greater than originally predicted. In addition, in order to
meet the Decent Homes and Exeter Standards the amount of external work to buildings
and estates had been reduced to free up sufficient funding. Some of the external
environment is now causing concern and has seen a rise in complaints from tenants.
Many other components within our properties are nearing or are past their predicted
natural life (eg boilers, electrical heating systems, water supply piping, windows etc) and
budgets need to be created to meet the need to replace these. Additional expenditure

is also required to ensure communal areas in blocks of flats meet new fire safety
regulations.

Page 2



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

5.1

5.2

5.3

At the same time it is expected that the Government will announce that the Decent
Homes Standard will need to be maintained after the 2010 target has been met and
possibly increased and expanded into other areas of work, for example, improving the
energy efficiency of our stock.

Unfortunately, because of the changes in our financial position the revised HRA
Business Plan is unable to allocate the amount of finance required to undertake the
level of work identified. As a consequence the Exeter Standard, promised to tenants in
2005 cannot now be delivered within the timescales originally agreed. Other work such
as re-roofing and re-wiring will now be done using an assessment based on condition
rather than age, helping the Council to reduce levels of expenditure in these areas in
order to maintain expenditure in others. The capital resources available annually over
the full 30-year period of the business plan are set out in Appendix II.

The Housing Asset Management Strategy sets out in detail how expenditure of the
available capital resources will be prioritised. It also sets out the work and levels of
investment that is required to the stock that cannot be funded. These ‘unfunded’ works
will continue to be monitored and included in future improvement programmes if and
when resources become available.

The Business Plan will continue to seek improvements to the housing service overall.
The latest tenant satisfaction survey showed that levels of satisfaction remain high (well
above national averages) and that almost 50% of tenants have noticed real
improvements to the service over the past two years. It is hoped these improvements
will continue and that our overall value for money will increase. Such improvements may
also generate further efficiency savings that can be recycled into improved services or
an expanded capital programme. We will also ensure that our contracting arrangements
continue to drive efficiencies in the service provided and improve the quality of the
service over the lifetime of the contract.

HRA SUBSIDY REVIEW

There are currently 206 stock holding local authorities across the country. Of these 156
are in ‘negative subsidy’, including Exeter. This means that the Government believes the
amount of money we need to spend on our services is less that the income we
generate. Therefore, any notional ‘surplus’ is paid into the national Housing Revenue
Account and re-distributed by Government to those Councils (typically large urban
authorities) where expenditure is high.

Over recent years the amount of subsidy paid by authorities such as Exeter has risen
dramatically as illustrated in paragraph 4.2. This has caused concern amongst those
negative subsidy authorities and prompted ministers to call for a comprehensive review
of the current system. The Head of Housing Services sits on the national review body
and has provided evidence to demonstrate that our expenditure needs are greater than
the current HRA formulas allow. It is expected that the outcome of this review will be
reported to ministers in the spring/summer of 2009 with any firm recommendations
being considered during the next comprehensive spending review, due in 2010. Any
change to the system will then be implemented from April 2011.

Whilst this review is welcome, and it is hoped will result in a fairer settlement for
authorities such as Exeter, this does not help plug the gap in funding for our housing
capital programme from 2010 onwards. Therefore, a short term solution is required to
enable the capital programme to be sustained pending the outcome of the national HRA
subsidy review.

Page 3



5.4

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Therefore, the revised Business Plan recommends that in order to maintain a
sustainable capital programme the Council will borrow against the Housing Revenue
Account. The total amount required will not be known until the draft HRA Subsidy
Determination is received in November this year. However, the amount required is
unlikely to exceed £1 million. Current interest rates are such that the cost of this
borrowing is likely to cost approximately £40,000 per annum.

S$151 OFFICER COMMENTS

The Head of Treasury Services has confirmed the accuracy of the financial information
used in this report and can also support the conclusions presented below.

CONCLUSION

The HRA Business Plan continues to demonstrate that the Housing Revenue Account
will generate a surplus, year on year, as a result of the low cost of managing and
maintaining our housing stock. This surplus will continue to be used as a contribution to
the housing capital programme.

The plan also demonstrates that due to increasing subsidy payments, reduced income
from the Right to Buy and investments and annually capped rent rises, the amount of
finance available to invest in the housing stock falls short of the total amount required
over the period of the business plan.

In managing the housing stock it is important that improvements to services continue to
be made and that any efficiency savings generated as a result are recycled into
improved services and/or additional stock investment

That whilst the Council waits for the outcome of the national HRA subsidy review it
agrees to borrow against the HRA in order to maintain a sustainable capital programme
in the medium term.

RECOMMENDED
That Scrutiny Committee — Community supports and Executive approves

1) the conclusions in this report;

2) that if necessary the Council borrows against the HRA in 2010/11 to maintain the
capital programme pending the outcome of the national HRA subsidy review;

3) that a further review is undertaken of the HRA Business Plan in 2010 and the
findings reported to Members.

HEAD OF HOUSING SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC4

24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 4



6£02-600¢ Sojewl}s3 JUNO0JIY SNUDADY mr__w:OT_

| xipuaddy

202°C 202'C 612 620'C €16°1 6.8') 98.°L 98/'1 10L°L Gz9'l 695'L GIG'L 198°1L plemiod pauie) senlasay

(s61) €9 09 901 6 €6 (v19) G8 9/ 95 ¥S (9v¢) (6£9) woysQq /sniding

00v°Z 6€L'2 6.0C £16') 6.8'1 98/'} 00v°z L0L'L GZ9'L 6951 GLG'L 198°L 00v'2 pJemio Jybno.g senlasay

(g61) £9 09 901 ¥6 £6 (¥19) S8 9/ 95 ¥S (9¥¢) (6£S) ypoyaq /sniding

r4 i X4 A Y44 00Z'L orL'l 0Ll 0LL'L 'L 00L'L 080°L 0.6 000'L 0051 296y [ended 0} UONNGUIUOY ANUBADY

v182L  |e8z’L 09Z'L 9vZ‘L $22'L £0Z°1L 865'9 G81°L 9G1°L 920°L $50°) $51°) £20°) ainyipuadxy jawoduj bugelado

958°C L1E pLE 60€ #0€ 662 eLEL $62 8GZ 161 L8l 991 444 1sa181u]

856°6 996 o6 /€6 026 06 68Z°G 068 868 5£8 €18 886 108 S8JIAI9G JO 1509 JaN

€0.'zzL |so9‘by  |zzs‘r  [wvv'iL  |ese’bl  losz'il  Jo6v's9  Jooz'kb  lzzi'bb  |9v0'bL  |¥88°0L  |bel'0L  |02S0L aimipuadx3 |ejol |
156°8¢  |2lLl'C 189°C 1G9'C 0z29'c L6G'E 96907 |l95'¢ £€5'¢C G0S'E SYP'c 18¢'e €12'¢ uoneaidag

goz'sy [LlE'p viZ'Y ZeT Y 06l'y 6vL'y ave‘'ve [s0L'Y 190"y 120'v 186'C 8¥6'c 606'S soUBUBJUIBI pue Jleday

0zz 02 0z 0z 0Z 0z 0zi 0¢ 0z 0z 0z 02 0¢ UOISIACIH 348G peg

vze‘se  [9gs'e 1¥S'S 8€G'C 625°C 025'¢ veo‘oz  JLLS'E 205'E ¥6¥'C PEY'C G/E'E 8LE'e Juswsbeuey [B1oUBY

L99°zeL 1252y |sov'zL  |ssezL  |62z'zL  |v8LZL 18202 Jo60'2L  |020°Z) 188°bL  1262°LL  |2h2'LL  [1zefhl awoou] [ejO |
(es9'09) 1(182'9) [(8sz'e) [(zes's) [(zor's) |(089'c) |(see‘te) [(rs9's) [(c09's) [(8zs's)  [(big'q)  |(260'S)  |(bvl'v) Apisgng Buisnoy

028°L 0/l 0L1 0Ll 0.1 0Ll 020°L 0L1 0/l 0Ll 0/l 0Ll 01 el 48

bELL Z18 18L 69/ oL ¥el £68°C €0/ Z89 299 69 819 685 sjuay buyemg UoN

gL2e8L fo/€'21  |69Z'LL LzL'2L J020°2)  J046'9L  |€98°L6 L28'9L L22'9L  [226'91L  |zze'gL  [9L0'9L  |90g'st awoou| Jusy

$0003 $0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 $0003 $0003 $0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003

lepor  Joz-6102 |61-8102 [81-2102 [/1-9102 91-GLOZ |ieolL G1-#10Z [vL-cL0g [el-zioz |zZi-1102 {11-0L0Z [01-6002

Page 5



18T L8Y'C 9/€'C 112'T 0812 1602 000°Z 000'2 606'L zz8') yrL'L G99'L 695" L plemio palie) SaAesey
596 S0l 66 16 68 L6 414 L6 /8 8/ 6/ 9/ e/ woieq /snding
91L5°L 9/£'C 1122 0812 1602 000'Z 915l 606} 228l vyl G99') 68G'L 916'L plemiod Jybnolg seniesay
696 501 66 16 68 16 ¥8Y 16 L8 8. 6. 9. £l youeg /sniding
0£9°'6 0zy 0LS 009 00/ 06/ 0199 0/8 0.6 00L'L 0L1°) 09Z'L ove'L [ende)) 0} uonNNQUIUDY SNUBASY
G65‘'0L  |s2s 609 169 68. 188 v60'L _ ]196 150°L 8.1°L 6v2'lL 9¢¢l gL'l ainjipuadx3 jawodu| bunesadQ
zol's v9E 6GE GGE 1GE 9ve 186°L Zre /€€ £€e 62¢ GZE 12 1salalu|
££8‘9 19l 0SZ e (T3 G€5 201°S 619 0Z. G¥8 026 110} 266 S391AI9S JO 180D J9N
s051er |sivzl lele'zh  leez'el  l6zi'zh  |seo‘zh  [88e'0L  JIV6LL 198°LL 02241 289V [€09°b) 0ZSLL ainjipuadx3 [ejoL
zso'sy  |eol'y 290'Y 120'v Z86'C Zv6's £v6‘zZ  |806'E G/8't 1£8'¢ 908’ v1.'C ePL'C uoneioasdaq
oev'os [9l8'V 89/'v \zL'y v.9'v 879'¥ cz8‘9z  |z8s'y LEG'Y 6%V 8vY'y YOv'y 09€'¥ 2ouBURUIE|N PuE Jleday
022 0z 0z 0Z 02 0z ozl 02 02 02 02 0z 0z uolsinoid 198Q pegd
108'2¢  |Li¥E 69P'E 19v'¢ £57'E Shy'e 20502 jlE¥'¢C 82¥'S LZ¥'c cLy'e GOp'S JBE'E Juswabeuep [I1aUd9)
zve'scl loss'zy  |eoszi  |S9s°zh 19621 lozs'zy  leev'ss  |99s‘zl 18621 |sL9‘ZL  l209'TY  [v192L  [ZlSZ) awoouj [ejo L
weery) e ety [Bos'9)  |(oog'9)  [(G29'9) (L6v'9g) l0or'9) |Gec'9) |[(6zi'9) [(z/6'9)  |(928'S) (¥08'G) Apisgng BuisnoH
0.8°L 0/1 0Ll 0/1 0.1 0Ll 0Z0°L 0L 0LL 0Ll 0/1 0.1 0/L ueio d4s
650°6 966 1G6 026 798 058 sv'y /18 S8/ GG/ 9z. 869 129 sjuay buijem UON
vl‘g6l |12.'8l 1858l levrsl  |ere'8L  [sz18y  |pis90L  |6€0°81 1262y 61821  |889°2L |zi8'ZL  |SivLL awoouj juay
S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 $0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003

fejol Lc-0c0Z |0c-620Z |62-8202 [82-120Z .lz-920C |lelol 97-6202  |S2-v20z |ve-€202 1€2-220C |22-120Z  [12-0202

Page 6



YA GZ.l'L 688'L 056°L 056'L 676'L Z16'L GG8'L veL') 129°'L piEMIO PBLIE)) SAISSSY
602 (v91) (19) ey L € .G 4} el G0l woueq /sniding
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1saJa1u| [BUOHON
915l 688'L 056'} 915°L 6Y6'L ZL6°L GG8'L vEL'L L29'L 916} pJemIo Jybnoig sen1asay
602 (#91) (1L9) 494 ! L8 1S 12l cil S0l J1o1y9@ /sniding
ov6 0 0 ov6 0P 00l 0Ll 0cl 0€Z 0£€ |eyde) 0} uonNQUIUOY SNUBADY
6vL°lL (rat) (19) vie'l (54 gl L9} 152 £ve Sev aJnyipuadx3 jawodu| buyelado
00g°c Nad 44 0Lre 214 LY G8¢ 6.€ ¥.€ 69¢ 1saJ9)u|
(L51L°2) (G09) (019) (9g0‘y)  [(L1¥) (¥1€) (812) (821) (1€) 99 $99IAI9S JO 150D JON
916°201 y2Z'cl LZLclL L25'92  JoLo‘€L  |Z16°CL L1821 1602°C) 119zL  [zis‘zh aimpuadx3 |ejo] |
8Z8ve [Aa 86€'P ggv'sz  |vSe'v LLE'Y 892'¥ 9ZZ'v G8l'y crL'y uoneiaidag
1ze‘or 122'S 891G zee'ez [9LL'S ¥90'S €10's 296' €16'y ¥98'y aoueusjulely pue Jieday
091 0z 0z ozl 0z 0z 0z 02 0z 02 uoIsInold 19eQ peq
20182 L¥S'e GEG'C 1e0‘bz  |9zS'E 11G'E 60G'C L0G'E £6Y'E GoY'c Juswabeue |elauag
692001 6L9'CL Lo‘zL  lses'ss  |so9‘zL  |865'ZL  1€6S°CL 185°7L 0852V (81§ awoouj [ejo
(096v9) Zor'a)  6.58) |6Lo'zy) |(eec's) |(ooz'®) [(Bi0'8) [(zv8's) [(g99'2)  |(@6¥'s) Apisgng Buisnoy
09g°L 0L1 0/l 020l 0Ll 0/l 01 0/l 0Ll 01 JueI9 dS
6556 99¢'1 c1e'l 9/8‘9 292\ cLZ'L 99}'L LZl'L 8/0'1 9£0't sjuay buyemg UoN
0L8'vS1 Gv¥8'6lL  [/02'6L  |8sz'sLL |695'6L \zv'6l |6zz'6L  lzel'slL  [/266'8L  |¥98'8L 3Wwoou| Juay
$0003 S0003 S0003 $0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 $0003 S0003 S0003

[ejo1L 6£-8€02  8¢-/£0Z |lelol /€-960Z |9¢-6£02¢ |se-¥£0Z [pE-€€02 |£€-2€02  |ZE-1£0C

Page 7



990'tS 819y 899y LiL'y 8LL'Y 828y L5v'0€ 698y Le6'y €20's 080°s §9Z's 682°G 9]ge|leAB S82IN0S3Y |e30 |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 soueleg BuOA WOl JuoD
0€9°6 0cy oLs 009 004 _omm 0199 048 0.6 001l 0ZL'L 09z't ove'L aiqelieAe 5,000y pajoaloid
9Er' by 86Ly 851y L'y 8.0 8€0‘y Lv8'ee 666°c 196'€ €26°c oL6'c 500y 6v0‘y $92in0say |ejide)
SLL'L 001 00t 001 0ol 00l S.9 001 0oL 001 0oL 0oL Sl sidiaoal JaUjo 4o asn
80¢€ 0 0 0 0 _o 80¢ 0 0 0 8l 145 Gvl sjdisoas g 1Y Jo asn
€56°CY 860t 850t 107 8.6'¢ 8€6'C ¥98'22 668'¢ 198'c €28’ 26L'E 09L'¢ 62.'¢ souemolje suleday Jofepy
S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 SQ003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003

/¥6'y Iv6'Y Lv6'y Lv6'y Lv6'Y JAL 1¥6'y Lv6'y 8Y6'y 9S6'Y ¥96't S13qWINN 2015 Buisnoy
ejol L€-0€0¢ 0€-620¢ 6¢-8¢0¢ 8¢-/20¢ £2-920¢ 1BjJoL 92-62¢0¢ G2-¥20c ¥2-€20¢ £€¢-¢¢c0¢_ |¢c-1¢ae 12-020¢
LOL'YS €9L°G ZLL's 2z0's 186 ze6'y L6v'6eT z68'y r8‘y ZvL'y OLL'y 8vL's SSL'S dlqejleAe S32IN0SAY |eJ0L
286 0 0 0 0 0 <86 0 0 0 0 00¢€ c89 douejeg BUIIOAA WoLfJuoD
0€0°2L 0zz'L 00Z'L ovi'L ogL'L _o:é 0€z'9 00L'L 080°} 0.6 000t 002t 088 9|ge|lene s,000Y pajoslold
689'Ly £v6'e zL6'e z88‘c 168'c zzg'e 6.2z2 zéL'e yoL'e TLL'e oLL'e 8v9'e £65°c sa2unosay [eyded
SLL'L 001 001 00} 00l 004 GL9 001 004 001 001 0oL Sll sjdiaoal Jayjo Jo asn
€0L°L 145 Sl Syl 145 _mv_‘ 8.6 Sl 145 18l 18l 18l 143 sjdiaoal g1 40 asn
Lig'ge 868'¢ 299'¢ LE9'C 909°¢ Li5°€ 9z9'0z LVS'E 615 l6i'e A 29¢'¢ €l souemojje siteday Jole|y
S0003 $0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003 S0003

956y ¥96't 267 086't 886't 966t 900'G 910'G 820'G 0v0's 250's siaquinN %203g Buisnoy
lejol 0¢-610¢ 61-810¢ 84-210¢ 21-9102 91-610¢ lejol Si-¥10C ¥1-€102 €1-¢10¢ -0z 1i1-010¢ 01-600¢

6£02-600Z S924n0say |ejiden BuisnoH

It xipuaddy

Page 8



1.1

21

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

Agenda ltem 7

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXECUTIVE
24 MARCH 2009

HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2009-2015

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform Members of the new Housing Asset Management Strategy and the
recommendations contained within it.

INTRODUCTION

Following the outcome of the mock inspection of landlord services in October 2007 one
key recommendation was the need to develop a comprehensive Asset Management
Strategy for the Council’s housing stock that links to the objectives set out in the Housing
Revenue Account Business Plan. This is supported by the Audit Commission’s Key Lines
of Enquiry documents that also expect to see a strategic approach by landlords to the
management of their assets.

The proposed Asset Management Strategy has been developed over the past twelve
months by a working group of officers and residents from the Tenants and Leaseholder
Committee (TALC) with input from the Portfolio Holder for Housing & Social Inclusion. A
copy of the full strategy has been placed on the web-site with a copy also available in the
Members’ room for information.

The strategy sets out in detail how the Council intends to manage its housing assets over
the next six years and how the available capital resources will be invested.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Asset management is defined as the management of physical assets to meet service and
financial objectives. Generally it is concerned with:

. The overall performance of the housing stock and the contribution it makes to the
HRA business plan.

. The whole life cycle of a property, from the proposal to build, through development
and maintenance, to the decision and method of disposal.

. The way management and investment can be directed to support community

development and improve asset portfolio performance.

The Council's approach to asset management will ensure that our housing stock meets
the current and future needs of client groups, while being sustainable and affordable. Our
asset management priorities are therefore to:

. Ensure the long term viability and sustainability of our existing stock and to
maximise its value.

o Maintain and manage the stock to meet current standards defined by decent
homes and our statutory obligations as a landlord.

. Invest in the stock to address future needs and improve environmental
sustainability.

. Within the parameters set by the HRA Business Plan, fund investment in the

existing stock to maintain its condition and meet tenant expectations.

Page 9



3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

. Reduce the long term costs of maintenance and housing management in line
with the efficiency agenda.
. Improve customer satisfaction and meet agreed aspirations.

In developing the strategy the working group has undertaken the following:

A comprehensive review of existing stock condition data

A review of other survey and responsive repair information

A review of existing maintenance and improvement programmes

Re-prioritised capital investment in the housing stock to meet available resources
Brought together recommendations from other review groups (e.g. older persons
review of sheltered housing) to ensure their recommendations are taken into account
Incorporated existing policy initiatives (e.g. development of in-fill sites, neighbourhood
management etc)

An assessment of recent tenants surveys and complaints

Ensured the strategy links with the HRA Business Plan and its overall objectives
Assessed best practice across the housing sector

Considered current legislation and regulation

MAIN RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PLAN

The Asset Management Strategy has identified the full range of maintenance and
improvement work required to the Council’s housing stock. It also puts an estimated cost
against each item of work and, where possible, the number of properties affected.
Unfortunately, the amount of capital resources available to undertake this work falls well
short of the total required.

To create a capital investment programme that meets the projected financial profile the
Asset Management Working Group looked at each item of work individually and assigned
a level of priority against each one. The group then placed each programme of work into
one of five main overarching categories. These categories were prioritised in the following
way:

Health and Safety
Structure

Thermal Comfort
External Works, and
Improvement Works

agbrwnN=

The works placed within each category were also prioritised to reflect resident aspirations
and requirements. Other issues were also considered and taken into account, including
maintaining the Decent Homes Standard past the 2010 target and meeting our statutory
and regulatory obligations.

As a result a new programme of work has been developed to ensure an acceptable and
sustainable minimum standard is maintained across the Council’s housing stock.
However, this review and re-prioritisation has resulted in aspects of the previous Exeter
Standard being dropped to ensure sufficient resources are available for other work. This
primarily affects replacement of kitchens and bathrooms which will mainly be carried out
on a reactive basis in future.

The re-prioritised programme places greater focus on the replacement of our existing and
out-dated electrical heating systems to almost 500 properties across the housing stock.
This will improve the overall efficiency of the heating in each property, help to reduce
tenants’ fuel bills and increase the stock’s overall SAP rating (a national measure of
energy efficiency and thermal comfort). It also includes essential fire prevention works in
communal areas to meet new regulations.

Page 10



4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

52

5.3

The new programme also includes some essential structural work such as the
replacement of concrete canopies and a budget for the improvement of communal areas
within and surrounding the Council’s 500 blocks of flats. A full copy of the proposed
capital programme for the years 2010-2015 and 2015-2020 is attached to this report as
Appendix I.

The strategy also sets out those works that currently cannot be funded. This work will be
carefully monitored and included in any future programme as and when additional
resources become available.

The strategy is required to consider all the Council’'s Housing Revenue Account assets.
Other issues included are:

An assessment of our current stock holdings and demand for it

The development of new housing on small ‘in-fill’ sites within existing housing estates
The potential for the development of new Council housing

The assessment of existing sheltered housing sites to help prioritise future investment
to ensure their long-term sustainability

Implementing more effective neighbourhood management policies to improve the
management of the housing stock

Policies for dealing with overcrowding and under-occupation

The continual updating of our stock condition database

The implementation of asbestos, legionella and fire safety regulations

Monitoring arrangements for delivering the strategy including a range of performance
indicators and enhanced resident involvement

CONCLUSION

There is a need for a strategic approach to managing the Council’s housing assets. It is
also a requirement of our regulators that we demonstrate such an approach is being
followed and that residents are involved in the development and delivery of the Asset
Management Strategy.

It is essential that the management of housing assets is linked with the overall business
plan for the service as a whole. The strategy must demonstrate that the resources
available are being invested in such a way as to achieve best value for money.

Long term investment plans will give officers, Members and residents greater certainty of
the work to be undertaken and assist in the delivery of the plan.

RECOMMENDED
That Scrutiny Committee — Community supports and Executive approves
1) the Housing Asset Management Strategy 2009-2015

2) that a further review of the strategy is undertaken in parallel with the HRA
Business Plan in 2010 and the findings reported to Members

HEAD OF HOUSING SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC2

24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



PROPOSED PROGRAMME

Appendix |

Work Required 2010 to 2015 | Nos of | 2015 to 2020 | Nos of | Total Value Total Comments
units units units
Decent Homes Works
Electrical testing £405,000 3000 £405,000 3000 £810,000 6000
Electrical rewires £1,834,000 800 £5,500,000 2400 £7,334,000 3200 |Criteria - Works based on condition rather
than age
New roofs £1,260,000 £1,260,000 £2,520,000 Criteria - Works based on condition rather
than age
Repointing £861,000 300 £800,000 275 £1,661,000 575  |Criteria - Works based on condition rather
than age
New windows £932,000 196 £568,000 £1,500,000 196  [Criteria - Works based on condition rather
than age
Insulation £150,000 £150,000 £300,000
Improvement works
Kitchens £3,000,000 500 £4,000,000 666 £7,000,000 1166  |Original list included estimate of £38,800,00
which would have done work on 5910 props
Bathrooms £2,250,000 500 £3,000,000 750 £5,250,000 1250 | This amount will do 2000.
Health and safety £0
Asbestos survey and removal £990,000 £500,000 £1,490,000
Fire prevention works £1,008,000 1680 £672,000 1120 £1,680,000 2800 |Works to inc 30min fire doors, ventilation to
comm halls, smoke detectors to comm hails
& emergency lights
Thermal Comfort £0
Replacement old gas appliances £2,261,000 804 £2,261,000 804
Replacement of electrical heating £1,384,000 492 £1,384,000 492
appliances
New heating at Rennes House £200,000 61 £200,000 61
Replacement of gas condensing boilers | £1,665,000 1665 £1,666,000 1666 £3,331,000 1665 |Criteria - Works based on condition rather
than age
Other
Disabled adaptations £2,800,000 £3,000,000 £5,800,000
External render (contract) £1,300,000 138 £1,400,000 138 £2,700,000 276
External Attributes (paths, walls etc) £400,000 £400,000
Repairs to non traditional construction £232,500 80 £292,500 80 £525,000 Full surveys required to Rennes House and
properties Clifford Close which may affect estimate
Replacement of concrete canopies over £255,000 300 £255,000 300
front doors
Communal area improvement (flats) £500,000 £500,000 £1,000,000
Sub total| £23,287.500 £24.113,500 £46.146.000
Contingency| £1,164,375 £1,205,675 £2,307,300 5% contingency on all programmes
Funded Programme total| £24,451,875 £25,319,175 £48.453,300

S:LP/Committee/309SCC2 Appx |

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 8

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXECUTIVE
24 MARCH 2009

DRAFT EMPTY HOMES STRATEGY 2009-2014
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To inform Members of progress in the preparation of the Exeter Empty Homes
Strategy 2009-2014 and advise about the proposed consultation. A draft of the
Strategy has been placed in the Members’ Room and is available on the internet.

2, BACKGROUND

2.1 The Empty Homes Strategy outlines our approach to ensuring that the number of
privately owned empty homes across the city is minimised. It also aims to reduce the
time those properties are left empty. With over 6,000 households on the Housing
Register, privately owned empty property is a valuable resource. The strategy builds
on work done over the passt13 years when the Empty Homes Partnership was first
formed.

2.2 The strategy recognises that unless there is continued intervention by the team:

e The downturn in the housing market and the credit crunch could mean some
homes will remain vacant for longer than six months;

e Some homes will become more difficult to let and/or sell and hence remain
empty; and

e Some renovation projects may have to stop or not begin at all due to lack of
finance and the inaccessibility of loans;

2.3 As Exeter has a high demand for housing, there is also an increasing need to look at
all sectors of empty property. This includes under-occupied homes, second and
holiday homes and redundant commercial and public spaces such as flats over
shops, warehouses, former-school buildings and deconsecrated churches. This
approach mirrors work done in the last recession when empty office blocks were
converted to social housing for rent.

2.41 The strategy explains the various tools the Council and its partners have at their
disposal to bring empty properties and underused space back into use. This includes:

e Continue to staff and resource the Empty Homes Partnership (with
contributions from Exeter City Council, Mid Devon District Council, East
Devon District Council, Teignbridge District Council and seven housing
associations);

Using new legal powers e.g. Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMOs);
Use of Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs);

Private Sector Leasing (PSL);

ExtraLet: management of private sector lettings;

Financial Incentives for property owners (capital and revenue);

Page 15



24

3.1

4.1

Acquisition of empty property;

Financial incentives to encourage social tenants to downsize;

Use of intelligence - encouraging the public to report empty properties to the
Council;

Lodgings scheme

Improved publicity

The strategy recognises the achievements of the Empty Homes Partnership over the
past 13 years:

The Partnership is close to bringing its 1000™ dwelling back into use.

Extralet currently manages 70 properties;

Private sector leasing of over 100 homes;

Larger successes include the reuse of Old School Court, Topsham; the
renovation of the former Admiral Inn public house in Alphington; conversion of
several prominent office blocks in the city centre and the renovation of the
Buddle Lane ‘Laings’ properties;

PROPOSALS

It is proposed that the draft Empty Homes Strategy go out for public consultation over
the next two months with the final strategy being submitted for consideration by
Members in the June 2009 committee cycle.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional financial implications over and above the Council’s current
commitment.

RECOMMEND that Scrutiny — Community supports and Executive approves:

(1) The draft Empty Homes Strategy

(2) That the draft strategy goes out for public consultation and the results and
amended strategy are reported to Members in June 2009.

HEAD OF HOUSING SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC5

24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Empty Homes Strategy 2009-2014

Page 16



1.1

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

Agenda ltem 9

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXECUTIVE
24 MARCH 2009

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL POLICY — ANNUAL REVIEW

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This report proposes specific changes to the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy in
order to address local needs, as identified in the on-going private sector house condition
survey. A copy of the Policy has been placed in the Members’ Room and is available
on the internet.

BACKGROUND

One of the Council’s priority objectives is to safeguard and improve the private sector
housing stock in Exeter, which is made up of 39,600 dwellings in the owner-occupied
and privately rented sectors. At nearly twice the national average, Exeter has a large
private rented sector (22% of the private stock) and large number of houses in multiple
occupation (HMOs), estimated at 2700 or 7% of the private stock. It is this sector,
particularly HMOs, where the poorest housing conditions are found.

Under the Housing Act 2004, the Council also has a legal duty to remove or reduce
Category 1 Hazards (e.g. excess cold, severe dampness, and overcrowding) from
dwellings in its area, and a discretion to deal with Category 2 Hazards. It has a range of
enforcement tools to deal with poor and dangerous conditions in homes.

In addition to enforcement, the Council currently offers financial assistance in the form of
means-tested grants to assist and encourage home-owners to improve their properties
and remove hazards. This financial assistance helps home-owners repair and adapt
private sector houses, funds energy efficiency grants for low income households
through Warm-up Exeter and PLEA (Private Landlord Energy Action) grants, and
supports ExtralLet and private sector leasing by means of private sector renewal grants.

PERFORMANCE IN 2008-09
Financial assistance to improve or adapt homes

95 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) with a total value of £518,000 were awarded
ensuring that clients could remain living independently in their own homes. All adapted
properties are brought up to the decent home standard as a condition of grant
assistance. This is 10 fewer adaptations than were achieved during 2007-08 but
demonstrates that there continues to be a strong need for adaptations in the home and
reflects changes introduced in 2007-08 which enhanced the scope of the DFG.

A total of 64 Renovation Grants with a total value of £421,000 were awarded to address
hazards in private sector houses and to undertake improvements to ensure that
dwellings meet the decent home standard. This represents a decrease of 28 grants
administered in 2007-08 but reflects the fact that the budget allocated by central
government was over £200,000 less than that year.

Page 17



3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Since Warm-up Exeter grants were started in July 2006 1463 householders have
benefited from financial assistance with 1771 energy efficiency measures, such as loft
and cavity wall insulation, being installed.  60% of these grants have gone to
households in fuel poverty who would have been ineligible for other forms of assistance.

HMO Licensing

Since the introduction of licensing in 2006, 771 of the larger, higher-risk HMOs within
the city have been issued with mandatory HMO licences (minute 85/05 refers). These
properties have been prioritised on the risk they present to tenants, over a 5 year
inspection programme, with 142 completed this year. To date 265 have been inspected
and brought up to the Council’s standard.

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE RENEWAL POLICY

The Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy will continue to offer a range of financial
assistance packages and from April 2009 this will include low interest loans.

As part of the new bidding arrangements for allocations from the Regional Housing Pot
for 2009/10 the City Council was encouraged, by the Government Office South West, to
bid for funding to join a consortium of local authorities which has been running a loan
scheme throughout Somerset and North Devon for some years. The loan scheme was
originally set up by the Government Office South West in an effort to break ‘grant
dependency’ (where house owners become over reliant on grants to maintain their
property). The grants are administered on the consortium’s behalf by Wessex
Reinvestment Trust, a not for profit social enterprise.

As a result of the bid £187,500 was allocated to the City Council to join the consortium.
A further £736,500 was also allocated for the continuation of grant funding.

The allocation will not only be used to set up a ‘revolving’ loan fund, ringfenced to fund
repairs and improvements and adaptations to properties in Exeter, but will also be used
to pay the Wessex Reinvestment Trust’s one-off set up fees of around £8000 and an
ongoing annual subscription fee of around £13,000 and the subsidy that the Council
must pay in respect of each loan. This will leave an initial loan fund of £166,600, subject
to the set-up fees and subscription fee being agreed.

The Wessex Reinvestment Trust offer three types of loan:
i) Capital Repayment Loans

Minimum loan £1,000, Maximum £15,000
Fixed term up to 15 years

Fixed monthly repayment

Available to all ages

A typical £5,000 loan taken out over 15 years will require a one off subsidy payment to
Wessex Reinvestment Trust, of £1,171 and will cost the householder £34.53 a month

i) Interest Only

¢ Minimum loan £1,000, Maximum £15,000
o Fixed monthly interest payments

Page 18



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

e The original loan capital will be re paid either when the house is sold (from
the sale proceeds) or upon transfer of the property title

¢ Open to clients aged 66 and over

e The loan will continue as long as they remain living in the house

A typical £5,000 loan will require a one off subsidy payment to Wessex Reinvestment
Trust, ranging from £1,833, for a 66 year old, to £706 for an 86 year old and will cost the
householder £5 a month

i) Interest Roll Up

¢  Minimum loan £1,000, Maximum £15,000

¢ No monthly payments

¢ Open to clients over 71

e The loan will continue as long as the client remains in the house

¢ Interest accumulates at 3% yearly compound interest is added to the initial
loan capital

¢ The loan and outstanding interest are paid upon sale or transfer of the
property title

A typical £5,000 loan will require a one off subsidy payment to Wessex Reinvestment
Trust, ranging from £1,833, for a 71 year old, to £1,312 for an 81 year old

It is proposed that all householders approaching the Council for financial assistance,
other than mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants which are funded separately, will be
provisionally screened and householders considered eligible for a loan will be referred
onto Wessex Reinvestment Trust for a thorough financial assessment. In most cases an
offer of a loan will follow. It is proposed that in cases where the amount of the loan
offered is insufficient to finance the full cost of necessary repairs or improvements to the
applicant’s property the loan will be topped up from the renovation grant budget, within
prescribed limits.

In both cases the repairs and improvements for which the loan and/or grant is offered
will be specified by the Council’s Grants Section who will authorise payment on
satisfactory completion of the works

In all cases, other than when Wessex Reinvestment Trust refuse to offer a loan, it is
proposed that any offer of grant aid will be conditional upon the householder taking on
the maximum level of loan offered.

In those cases where a loan is refused, the reasons for refusal will be examined and a
decision whether to offer a grant will be determined on a case by case basis by the
Head of Environmental Health Services.

Where applicants decline a loan, financial assistance will not be offered. If, as a result, a
category 1 hazard remains present in the applicant’s home, appropriate enforcement
action will be taken as described in the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy. This
action is necessary to discharge the Council’s mandatory duty to deal with such
hazards.

Financial assistance maxima
It is proposed that the maximum level of renovation grant is reduced from £25,000 to

£15,000. This reduction reflects the support that will be offered by the loan. In
exceptional circumstance, any level of grant beyond £15,000 may be agreed by the

Page 19



412

412

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

6.1

Head of Environmental Health Services. In the main, very few grants exceed £15,000,
the average grant administered during 2008/09 being £7,000.

It is proposed that renovation grants are no longer made available for residential mobile
homes due to the difficulty of enforcing the 25 year grant conditions. The sale and
purchase of such dwellings rarely involves a solicitor or land registry searches with the
result that the repayment conditions are virtually impossible to enforce. Wessex
Reinvestment Trust are only prepared to offer Capital Repayment Loans for the repair of
mobile homes but because the loan is effectively ‘unsecured’ they require the loan to be
underwritten by the City Council in the event of default. It is proposed, therefore, that the
loan maxima for mobile homes is limited to £3,500

Licensing fee

The fee for licensing licensable HMOs has been set at £400 for a five year licence since
the outset of licensing in 2006. The fee has been reviewed and it is proposed that it is
increased to £600 in order to fully cover the costs involved.

PROPOSALS FOR SPENDING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ALLOCATION

It is proposed that the £187,500 allocation from the Regional Single Pot, specifically
awarded to set up and run a low interest loan scheme in conjunction with Wessex
Reinvestment Trust, is utilised for that purpose. Although the set up and subscription
costs have yet to be finalised it is anticipated that there will be approximately £160,000
available to put into the loan fund.

£187 500

It is proposed that Home Repair Assistance and HMO Grants will continue and that
Renovation Grants will be offered in conjunction with the Wessex Reinvestment Loans.
It is proposed that £555,250 of the Regional Single Pot allocation is allocated, in the
first instance, to renovation grant budget but that this is kept under review with the
prospect of using a percentage of this budget to ‘top up’ the loan fund if necessary.

£555,250

It is proposed that the £181,250 allocation from the Regional Single Pot, specifically to
provide financial assistance to improve the energy efficiency of the private sector
housing stock is utilised to fund Warm-up Exeter and PLEA grants.

£181,250

It is proposed that the £270,000 DFG allocation is specifically used to fund mandatory

DFGs. ltis anticipated that this will fund 50 DGFs in 2009/10. In circumstances where
a mandatory DFG is unable to proceed due to the inability of the applicant to fund their
contribution, then the applicant will be permitted to apply for a Disabled Facilities Loan

to fund that contribution or part (offered by Wessex Reinvestment Trust). In the cases
where a loan is refused, the reasons for refusal will be examined, and a decision as to

whether to offer a discretionary DFG will be determined on a case by case basis.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The amended policy will be funded from the 2009-10 budget allocation. The financial

implications of the changes will be closely monitored and the information used to inform
the next review of the policy.

Page 20



7. RECOMMENDED that

1) Scrutiny Committee - Community supports and Executive agrees to adopt the
changes to the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy outlined in this report;

2) the expenditure of the single pot allocation is monitored and that the proposed
financial allocation to each of the schemes amended or further schemes can be
approved by the Head of Environmental Health Services in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Housing & Social Inclusion;

3) the Policy is reviewed annually, or sooner if needs be, in order to ensure that it
addresses local needs and/or government policy.

HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

S:LP/Committee/309SCC6
24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



1.1

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

Agenda ltem

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXECUTIVE
24 MARCH 2009

EXETER AIR QUALITY STRATEGY 2009-2014

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This report seeks approval of the Exeter Air Quality Strategy 2009-2014, and informs
Members of the air quality monitoring and management undertaken by the Council.
A copy of the strategy has been placed in the Members’ Room and is available on
the internet.

BACKGROUND

The Council’s first five-year air quality strategy was approved by Members in June
2003. The strategy drew together the existing air quality work undertaken by
Environmental Health Services. This work is primarily driven by statutory obligations
and the strategy provides a means of organising and coordinating it to best effect.
This strategy sits beneath and supplements the Council’s Community Strategy —
Exeter Vision, Environmental Strategy 2007-2012 and Climate Change Strategy
2008-2018.

Few things are as fundamental as the air we breathe. Modern medical statistics now
allow us to begin to see the real impact that the air we breathe has on our health.
People with pre-existing respiratory and cardio-vascular disease are particularly at
risk from air pollution. Indeed the statistics can be shocking with the Government
stating that up to 24,000 people die prematurely every year in the UK because of the
effects of air pollution.

Clean air that is fit to breathe is one of the key factors required to deliver a safe
environment for both current and future generations. The Department of the
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs’ (DEFRA) UK Sustainable Development
Strategy "A Better Quality of Life" sets out a national vision for delivering a
sustainable environment. A National Air Quality Strategy has also been produced,
which sets out the Government's plans to improve and protect ambient air quality, as
part of the creation of a sustainable environment.

The Government has challenged local authorities under Part IV of the Environment
Act 1995 to assess and manage their air quality. National health-based standards
and objectives have been published to allow air quality to be assessed and to drive
forward management policies.

The Council uses a comprehensive network of 61 air pollution monitors, along with
computer models, to assess air quality in Exeter. These show that air quality is
generally very good; there is, however, a need to tackle emissions of nitrogen dioxide
associated with motor vehicles along the busiest roads into the city. This resulted in
the legal designation of an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) for areas in very
close proximity to some of the main routes into Exeter in April 2007.

Page 23

10



2.6

2.7

2.8

29

3.1

The creation of this area enables the Council to develop and focus policies designed
to protect and improve Exeter’s air quality. These have been formalised within a
detailed Air Quality Action Plan for Exeter, which aims to reduce pollution by cutting
congestion on the main routes into the city. Exeter City Council has worked closely
with Devon County Council (the Highways Authority) to produce the action plan.

In addition to local air quality management, the Council has numerous other statutory
duties with regard to air quality such as the management of specified ‘prescribed
processes’. In Exeter there are 38 permitted processes and Council staff inspect
these to ensure compliance with the conditions within their permit.

Other areas of work which are related to air quality issues include responding to air
quality complaints and advice requests; there were more than 346 received in 2008.
Officers also provide advice on air quality to Planning Services, in relation to forward
planning and development control.

The Exeter Air Quality Strategy 2009-14 provides details of all of these activities. It
also gives a number of specific air quality objectives and summarises the approaches
to these and the suggested methods of monitoring and reviewing the Council’s
progress in meeting them.

PROPOSAL

The Exeter Air Quality Strategy 2009-14 provides details of all of the existing air
quality work undertaken by Environmental Health Services. It is proposed to adopt
the strategy which identifies a number of specific air quality objectives and
summarises the approaches to be taken to meet these objectives and suggests
methods of monitoring and reviewing progress.

RECOMMENDED

That Scrutiny Committee - Community supports and Executive approves that the
Exeter Air Quality Strategy 2009-14 be adopted by the Council.

HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC7 v2

24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Air Quality Strategy for England - DEFRA

Page 24



Agenda ltem 13

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE COUNCIL’S ARRANGEMENTS FOR MANAGING

1.1

21

2.2

23

24

3.1

RISKS FROM WASTE MANAGEMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This report advises Members of the outcome of the recently completed Auditor’s
review of arrangements for managing the risks posed by waste management and
climate change, and to the extent at which those risks are being managed, and seeks
Members’ support for the action plan contained in the review.

BACKGROUND

In the 2007-08 Audit Plan completed by the auditors Grant Thornton, a number of
risks were identified to the Council, which included the challenges presented by
changing Government requirements in relation to waste management and climate
change.

These subject areas are of great importance; waste management is one of the most
visible frontline services provided by local authorities, and, over a number of years,
there has been a significant shift from merely removing waste from households
towards better resource management, through recycling and re-use. Since 1990,
National and European legislation has been introduced that requires waste collection
authorities to implement a range of policies and practices for re-using, recycling, and
recovering energy from a significant proportion of waste collected and sent for
disposal.

The issue of climate change is also high on the agenda of many organisations, and
the effects of climate change are and will be significant unless the factors which
contribute to climate change, such as CO2 emissions, are checked. As well as
limiting its own impact on climate change in its operation, the Council should be seen
as being at the forefront of local efforts, in its community leadership role, in tackling
climate change issues.

The review sought to understand the Council's arrangements for identifying the key
issues, for meeting the developing waste management and climate change targets
and for identifying and managing the associated risks. It was conducted in the
Autumn of 2008, and is attached as Appendix I.

CONCLUSIONS OF REVIEW

Waste Management

The Auditor concluded that the Council has in place an appropriate strategy and
objectives/targets, which recognise the changing legislation and consequent
changing demands on the Council, and its partners, in respect of recycling and waste

reduction. It noted that the strategy and objectives/targets are revisited annually,
with appropriate Member involvement.

Page 25



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

41

6.1

However, the review also highlighted that there is an opportunity for the Council to be
far more thorough in identifying all the strategic and operational risks relating to
waste management, including reputational and financial, and to be clear about the
arrangements in place to minimise these risks. It recommended that the corporate
and departmental risk registers relating to waste management are expanded.

Climate Change

The Auditor was satisfied that the Council has made good progress in establishing
sound arrangements for addressing the issues of climate change. It noted that the
Council has clear strategies and monitoring arrangements, and has engaged officers
and Members in the monitoring and review process. The report commented that the
Council has recognised its role as a community leader and is therefore seeking to
influence the habits of individuals and organisations within its boundaries; and that is
also concerned to initiate measures to reduce its own carbon footprint.

As with waste management, the audit report considered that the issue of
strengthening risk management, is also relevant to climate change. It recommended
that the Council further enhance its risk management arrangements, by ensuring that
all relevant strategic and operational risks are identified within the Corporate Risk
Register, and then ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place to mitigate
those risks.

Recommendation of Auditor’s Review

The Auditor recommended that the Council should identify fully the risks associated
with its waste management and climate change action plans, and ensure that
mitigating controls are in place for each risk identified.

PROPOSED ACTION PLAN

In response to the Auditor’'s recommendation, the Head of Environmental Health
Services will ensure that detailed risk registers will be formulated for each theme,
with significant risks identified within the corporate risk register (the latter being
subject to monitoring by Scrutiny Committees).

Stewardship of the Climate Change risk register will rest with Climate Change
Steering Group, whereas the Head of Environmental Health Services will be
responsible for the stewardship of the recycling/waste management risk register,
which will also be incorporated into the annual report on the Council’s Recycling
Plan.

A target completion date of March 2009 has been set for these risk registers to be
finalised.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional financial implications imposed by carrying out these
recommendations.

RECOMMENDED that

1) Scrutiny Committee - Community notes the Auditor’s report, and supports the
action plan contained within it (Appendix A of the report).

Page 26



HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC8
24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



o Grant Thornton

Exeter City Council

Arrangements for meeting Government
requirements on Waste Management and

Climate Change

28th December 2008

Page 29



Contents Page

1 Introduction and background 1
2  Waste management 2
3. Climate Change 5
Appendices

A ACTION PLAN

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All r'phts resergé

a



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

I Introduction and background

In our 2007-08 Audit Plan, we identified a number of risks to the Council, including the
challenges presented by changing Government requirements in relation to waste
management and climate change.

We have reviewed the arrangements that the Council has in place to meet its changing
obligations with regard to these issues, and the extent to which the risks identified are being
managed.

Waste management is one of the most visible frontline services provided by local
authorities, and, over a number of years, there has been a significant shift from merely
removing waste towards better resource management, through recycling and re-use.

Since 1990, National and European legislation has been introduced that requires waste
collection authorities to implement a range of policies and practices for re-using, recycling,
and recovering energy from a significant proportion of waste collected and sent for disposal.

The issue of climate change is also high on the agenda of many organisations, and the
practical effects of climate change are, many argue, already being felt. The Council is in an
influential position and should be seen as being at the forefront of local efforts, in its
community leadership role, in tackling climate change issues.

Our review has sought to understand the Council's arrangements for identifying the key
issues, for meeting the developing waste management and climate change targets and for
identifying and managing the associated risks.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 31



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

2 Waste management

Strategy objectives and actions

The Council has a well-established track record in recycling, having published its first
Recycling Plan in 1992, and this has been regularly updated to account for changes in
legislation, and for changes in the locality. The Plan is to be reviewed and updated in 2008-
09.

The current approach to recycling is encompassed in the Recycling Plan 2006-2011, and this
sets out policies aimed at enabling the City to reach, what the Plan describes as,
"challenging" recycling and waste reduction targets. We understand that the Council is not
actually required to produce a recycling plan because the Council has been rated as
"excellent" by the Audit Commission. However, the Council still does so in the interests of
good quality service planning.

The Recycling Plan sets out a number of aims and objectives in respect of recycling,
including reducing waste production, encouraging recycling and re-use, promotion of good
policies and practices and increasing local markets for recyclable materials.

The Plan describes the wide variety of legislation and directives governing waste
management, and the range of recycling services, either provided by the Council, or in
which it participates. It also recognises the longer term importance of waste minimisation,
including within the Council's own day-to-day operations. The Plan also notes the
increasing impact of the Landfill directives, which, while directly affecting Devon County as
the Waste Disposal Authority, also has implications for the Council and its partners across
the County.

The Recycling Plan includes an action plan, in which management actions and target dates
for completion are assigned to specific Council objectives. Responsibility for individual
actions is assigned to officers. Key Performance Indicators for recycling and waste
minimisation are included within the corporate performance monitoring process and is
reported quarterly to Senior Management Team, the Executive Team and to Scrutiny
Committee (Community). An annual report is also presented to Scrutiny Committee
(Resources).

The Plan identifies the range of statutory and local waste management and recycling targets
and reaffirms the Council commitment to meeting these. The national minimum target for
statutory recycling and composting is 30%, and is expected to remain at this level for some
years. However, the local target is 33%. We have identified that the Council is currently
achieving a 35.5% recycling rate, compared to the 33% target. However, further
development is required in respect of organic waste. Currently, the Council strategy is to
encourage home composting and waste reduction. The proposed "Energy from Waste"
plant (Devon County Council initiative) will be key to the diversion of organic waste from
landfill, though it will be 3 years before the proposed processing unit is operating.

A provisional stretch target of 40% is highlighted for 2010-11, though the Devon-wide
target within the Municipal Waste Management Strategy has been revised to 50%, the effect
of which is to increase the Council's own recycling target to 41.5% by 2010-11.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 32

2



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

Partnership arrangements

The Plan recognises that, as a Waste Collecting Authority, the Council is only a part of the
whole waste management process, and therefore it has built, over a number of years, a
strong working relationship with other partners, most particularly with Devon County
Council, as the Waste Disposal Authority.

The Plan highlights the long history of joint working with other authorities in Devon which
presently manifests itself in the Devon Authorities Waste Reduction and Recycling
Committee (DAWRRC). This is attended by member and officer representatives from each
participating authority. We understand that this Devon-wide model has been cited as a
model of best practice and it is underpinned by cooperative frameworks across the
participating organisations. However, it is not clear to us how much authority the
DAWRRC has, and what would happen if individual authorities started to perform poorly
on key waste/recycling targets. For example, as we highlight earlier in this report, a Devon-
wide stretch target has been agreed, but it is not clear how that would be enforced through
DAWRRC. That notwithstanding, the DAWRRC is seen to have great value to the
participants.

A Devon-wide waste strategy is in place, underpinned by co-operative frameworks across
the participating organisations. There is also a waste management strategy produced by the
South West Regional Assembly.

The DAWRRC members authorities are all engaged in the national performance reporting
process, in which data from the Waste Data Flow (WDF) system is used to report data to
DEFRA. The DAWRRC considers the full set of WDF data as part of its work.

Monitoring and reporting arrangements

We have identified that there is currently quarterly reporting on key performance indicators.
Reporting against the BVPI waste and recycling targets is managed through the corporate
performance monitoring system (Performance Plus). Performance against specific recycling
targets is reported quarterly to members, though more frequent monitoring by the Recycling
Manager ensures that any significant fall in performance (excluding seasonal changes) is
identified and addressed at an early stage.

The Scrutiny Committee (Community) is the focal point for member involvement in waste
management issues. The Head of Environmental Health Services regularly reports on a
range of issues relating to waste management. Support for service developments is also
sought from the Committee. In particular, the Committee has reviewed progress with the
corporate Recycling Plan, including consideration of the 2007-08 Improvement Plan.

During 2007-08, the Committee has considered progress with the Recycling Plan since its
inception in 2006, as well as considering improvement issues for 2007-08.

Landfill Alowance Trading Scheme (LATS)

The Council's Recycling Plan recognises the fundamental importance of the EU directives
on landfill.

The key driver for municipal waste management in Devon for the next few years is the
LATS scheme. LATS places limits on how much biodegradable municipal waste can be
land-filled in Devon, setting diminishing amounts for each year until 2020. By 2020 only
35% of the amount of biodegradable waste land-filled in 1995 will be allowed, and for each
tonne land-filled over this amount a fine of up to £150 per tonne will be levied.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 33

3



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

The LATS allowances and penalties are the responsibility of Devon County Council, as they
apply to Devon as a whole. The implementation of the LATS scheme is one of the reasons
that the partners across Devon are proposing three new "energy from waste" plants, one of
which will be sited in Exeter by 2011, as material that has passed through such a plant will
have its entire biodegradable component removed.

We understand that the "energy from waste" initiative is crucial to the Devon authorities in
progressing the waste/recycling agenda. However, it is not clear to us that all the risks
associated with the proposals have been identified and considered. We therefore re-
emphasise the value there may be in ensuring that all the risks associated with LATS are
identified, and appropriate arrangements are put in place to manage those risks.

Summary

Opverall, we have concluded that the Council has in place an appropriate strategy and
objectives/targets, which recognise the changing legislation and consequent changing
demands on the Council, and its partners, in respect of recycling and waste reduction. The

strategy and objectives/targets are revisited annually, with appropriate member involvement.

The Council could enhance these arrangements further by assessing all the risks associated
with waste/recycling and the impact of failing to meet local and national targets. We
understand that a risk has been identified in respect of the Materials Reclamation Facility,
specifically the implications of it being destroyed, and how the Council would then manage
the recyclable waste. We have also noted that, as part of the corporate risk management
arrangements, the Council reviewed the risks associated with the recycling site, and, as a
result of specific work on staff training and improved management of the site, was, in
November 2007, able to reduced the risk from medium to low.

However, there is an opportunity for the Council to be far more thorough in identifying all
the strategic and operational risks relating to waste management, including reputational and
financial, and to be clear about the arrangements in place to minimise these risks. This will
ensure that the corporate and departmental risk registers are more complete.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 34

4



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

3. Climate Change

Background

The Council has a Climate Change Strategy 2008-2018, and this supersedes or overlaps with
a number of previous strategic documents (Draft Climate Change Strategy 2007-17,
Environmental Strategy 2007-2012, Corporate Environmental Strategy 2001-06 and
Environmental Strategy for Exeter 2001-07).

The current strategy is built on a number of key policy themes (energy, transport, waste,
community leadership and adapting to the effects of changes in climate) and takes account
of input from research undertaken by Exeter University as well as some public consultation.

The Strategy recognises the role of the Local Strategic Partnership and also the dual role of
the Council - its role as a community leader in identifying and addressing local climate
change issues, and also, as a consumer of resources, its role in reducing its own
environmental "footprint".

The Strategy contains detailed analysis of the impact of climate change on the local area. It
indicates that 45% of carbon dioxide emissions in Exeter come from the non-domestic
sector (compared to 49% nationally), while 34% are derived from domestic consumption
(compared with 28% nationally) and 21% from transport (compared to 27% nationally). It
also identifies the potential to reduce total emissions in Exeter by around a quarter in 2020,
compared with 2004 levels, taking account of future growth.

An action plan, covering the period to Spring 2009, has also been produced. We understand
that it is intended that a revised action plan will be produced in 2009, and then every three
years. The current action plan has a range of actions over the key policy themes.

As a community leader, the Council sees that it has an influencing role and an enforcing
role. It has a number of initiatives in place to support change. For example, it is currently
focusing on ensuring that the housing stock, whether owned by the Council or otherwise,
maximizes the use of roof and wall insulation, and is encouraging the take-up of grants to
ensure this issue is addressed. It has also introduced a climate change levy on its car parking
charges, and the additional funding derived is used to fund initiatives suggested by the
public. Some of the funding (£50,000) is also being used as grant aid for those caught in the
"trap" just above the level of income at which benefits can be claimed.

The current Strategy was considered and approved by Scrutiny Committee (Community) at
its meeting of January 2008, at which it also agreed to monitor progress on an annual basis.

The Council has also developed, in conjunction with the Carbon Trust, a 2008 Carbon
Management Strategy and Implementation Plan. This resulted from the Council being
selected to participate in the 5th phase of the national Local Authority Carbon Management
Programme. The Council has earmarked £100,000 over five years for this initiative, the
objective being to achieve sustainable savings in energy consumption in the medium to long
term.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 35

5



Arrangements for meeting Government requirements on Waste Management and Climate Change

The Council has established a Climate Changes Steering Group, which is director-led and
which includes heads of services. The Group meets monthly and monitors progress of the
action plan against all the policy themes. It also monitors progress against all the
environmental performance indicators.

However, it is not clear to us that the Council has yet addressed the issue of risk
management in regard to the climate change agenda and, as with the issue of waste
management, we consider that the Council would benefit from considering this in more
detail.

Summary

We are satisfied that the Council has made good progress in establishing sound
arrangements for addressing the issues of climate change. It has clear strategies and
monitoring arrangements, and has engaged officers and members in the monitoring and
review process. It has recognised its role as a community leader and is therefore seeking to
influence the habits of individuals and organisations within its boundaries. It is also
concerned to initiate measures to reduce its own carbon "footprint".

We consider that the issue of risk management, which we raised in regard to waste, is also
relevant here. There is an opportunity for the Council to strengthen its risk management
arrangements, in respect of climate change issues, by ensuring that all relevant strategic and
operational risks are identified within the Corporate Risk Register, and then ensuring that
appropriate arrangements are in place to mitigate those risks.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page 36

6



paniasal sYBL IV "dT1 MN UOIUIOY L JUEID 6002 ©

SQITAIOS YI[BOH

‘ue[d SuIpoAoay

s Jrouno)) 9y} uo 11odal [enuue oy} ojur
parerodioour aq OS[e [[IM YOIYM “I9)SITaI
NSLI JUSWASRUBW J)SBM/FUI[OKI

oy jo dryspremals ay) 10§ o[qisuodsal
aq [[IM SAJTAIRS YI[BSH [BIUSWUOIIAUY
JO peaH 2y} searoym ‘dnoin) Juriealg
oSueyD W) YIIM ST (1M 19ISISaI
ys1 aguey)) 91ewI) ay) Jo diyspremals

“(seonruuo)) Aunniog Aq JuLioyruowr
01 109[qns Suraq 1o18[ ) J9ISI3I
Ysu 9e10d10d Yy UMM PAJIuIpI
SYSLI JUBDHIUSIS YPIM QUIdY) OB J0J

‘Paynuspl

YSLI yoea J0j 9oe[d ur are S[onuod
Sune3nru 1ey) ainsus pue sue[d uonoe
J3ueyo AJeWII/2ISEM SIT JIM POIBIOOSSE

Page 37

[BIUSWUOIIAUY JO PBOH 6007 s1€ UYoTeIN | PIR[NULIO) 9q [[IM SI0ISIAI YSII pafrela(] UYSIH | Ssu oy A[[ny AJ13uepl pinoys [1ouno)) Y],
uonejudwdury
JIDYJO PedT 10j e JUIUWIWO)) JUIWATCUBTA] INTATIRE UOI)EPUIUITO0IIY

NVId NOILLOV V

abueyn ajewiH pue Juswabeueyy alse )\ UO sjuawalinbal Juawulanoy Buneaw oy syuawabuelly



o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication

Page 38



1.1

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

Agenda ltem 14

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

RE-TENDERING OF THE HOUSING RESPONSIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform Members of the current timetable for the re-tendering the housing responsive
maintenance contracts and seek Member nominations onto the project group.

INTRODUCTION

The Council’s Housing Services Unit undertakes approximately 14,000 responsive repair
jobs to its 5000 properties each year. The responsive maintenance budget totals over
£3.1 million. This includes general building works, void repairs, gas and electrical reactive
repairs and gas servicing work.

The existing responsive maintenance contracts are due to expire in October 2010
therefore the Council is commencing a full options appraisal to establish a strategy for
packaging and tendering this work. The process requires all options to be explored and
fully appraised. It will also need to take account of current standards being achieved
across the industry and the best practice employed to provide a first class responsive
repairs services.

To assist in this process the Council is engaging specialist consultants with extensive
knowledge and expertise in this field who will be able to advise and guide us through the
process and provide a range of information from across the sector.

The timetable for this project is tight. The procurement strategy will need to be reported to
Scrutiny-Community and the Executive in June of this year in order for the overall
timetable to be achieved. The full project timetable is attached as Appendix .

To assist in this process it is essential that our tenants and leaseholders are represented
on the project team. However, it is also proposed that the project team should include
Members. Therefore it is suggested that the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Social
Inclusion will be part of this team together with two members from this committee. It is
anticipated that the likely time commitment for the option appraisal part of the process will
be two or three meetings (taking place at the Civic Centre during office hours) with more
meetings to be arranged once the tender evaluation stage has been reached at the end
of the year.

RECOMMENDED - that Scrutiny Committee — Community:

1) Notes the report and the project timetable
2) Nominates two members of the committee to sit on the project group

HEAD OF HOUSING SERVICES

S:PA/LP/Committee/309SCC15

24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



:.3.?H:-mrr._aﬁ.‘m,.u-.um_mimﬁ”nhnnﬁﬁynﬁw.h%m_-.n_o_n__.-n_z a1, 80 Kok R T dagaariy ¥ad 4]
T T | = 1

Sk F: BL D5 v 06 O BT b BH SR T
11

[fi = =

=T T 1 I [ = =] | | |
| | | w o] o] ADN ‘_Ioﬂ W sav| @ o | e sar| | | || ..n,_|=m. = = i | i

b T

[ T MR T

5= ] ! I_l-_r| i ... |.|.| [Eis
e HHH %«|r+._|ﬁh

| | _ ) @ =1 1
| | | _ |
= =i 8 e

| A G :.f_,pl
1= i

=g

T Spomans|en

| I 1 T _.I_y e
EEEE :

Page 41

~j0ap o 1ETR[ aree]

Sy AT A0

~pouad mpuALfe

SIUSEROT ajAE: AIEdRI |5

9
s il

iy Sam i) FIOREO|

1 .I_ S EMSLAIIT AR LU0 €

GRER G e N A N T [HE] ..uIF_HN__:.P“m HNE.,. _N [ Sapnay |
L | E |1 | = | i SRS 1

) v....m_!. o A

@ uav] | e v o mdd| FNHOM

|— | o = T T pomsersuondt |
1 1 | i | S === L s g
SEEbnmEMecesms=s 5 i S
| = | ] = I ] | ! =]
[t [pEler|eis et [T |zzfstis [1 st _5 HEir OE [E2 (91 |6 [T _[9E (61 [T1 S .N__m_.|.

g i e A e

| xipuaddy




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



1.1

21

2.2

23

24

Agenda ltem 15

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

PORCH: PROLIFIC OFFENDERS RESETTLEMENT
THROUGH CO’ORDINATED HOUSING

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform Members of the progress of the PORCH Project that is run by Exeter
Community Initiatives (ECI) and funded, in part, by the Council.

BACKGROUND

PORCH was originally developed in 2006 from funding and support provided to ECI
by the Government’s Innovations’ Forum and the Home Office (£80,000), the Safer
Devon Partnership, Government Office South West (£20,000), the Devon and
Cornwall Probation Service, various charities, East and Mid Devon Districts and
Exeter City Council (£15,000). The project went live in September 2006.

The project was developed as a response to the challenge of breaking the cycle of
offending amongst prolific offenders. With over 60 prolific offenders in the Exeter
(42), East and Mid Devon (18) areas in 2006, it recognised the need to ensure that,
on discharge from prison, prolific offenders received “effective housing resettlement
to reduce re-offending”.

The project aimed to:

e establish a specialist floating support service for prolific offenders through
housing, criminal justice and treatment regimes;

¢ build the capacity of existing housing providers (all tenures) to accept the
risks presented by these offenders, co-ordinate assessment and referrals and
get access to appropriate learning/training and resources etc;

o empower offenders to take greater control of their lives by helping with their
personal development: skills, knowledge and behaviour; and;

e intervene at key points in the criminal justice system to ensure that housing
needs were addressed.

By March 2007, cumulatively PORCH had supported 38 prolific offenders, of which
20 had been found accommodation. During the first 18 months of the project, the
University Of Plymouth Social Research and Regeneration Unit monitored and
evaluated the Project overall. In February 2008, their final report confirmed the
positive effect that PORCH was having on the lives and behaviour of individuals. It
concluded: “a comprehensive referral and assessment process has been established
for Prolific Offenders that is considered to be appropriate and effective by all staff and
referral routes to the Project. Although 13 of the 66 clients assessed chose not to
engage further with the project, by the end of November 2007 a cumulative total of
34 beneficiaries had been successfully housed in accommodation that is suitable
within PORCH terms of reference.” On the basis of the final evaluation and other
performance information, the Council provided further revenue funding of £16,000 in
2008/09.

Page 43



2.5

26

2.7

PORCH also underwent some developmental changes. During 2007 it became clear
that there was a good deal of overlap with the issues faced by clients in the Closing A
Revolving Door (CARD) Project, which was also managed by ECI. CARD provided
case management and mentoring support for mainly short-sentence prisoners. This
led to a merger between the two projects with effect from 1% April 2008. The new
CARD PORCH Project now provides a more integrated mentoring and housing
support service.

By January 2009, since its inception in September 2006, the team has supported 108
prolific offenders, at least 83 of which could have become homeless on leaving
prison if help had not been provided. The majority of these were accommodated in
the private rented sector with the PORCH team supporting them through the process,
for example, assisting them to deal with any tenancy sustainment, landlord or
neighbour issues. Only 2 clients approached Exeter City Council to make homeless
applications and neither had to be accommodated. Whilst not all of the 83 people
would have been in priority need, PORCH has proved its value as a homelessness
prevention project and undoubtedly saved money from the Council’s housing
advice/homelessness budgets.

Following the “credit crunch”, the Project’s future has become more uncertain. The
Council had not budgeted to support he project beyond 2008/9 and given our current
financial situation is unable to provide any funding for PORCH in 2009/10. However,
given that the project does contribute to achieving the Council’s homelessness
targets, further funding maybe possible if savings can be found from within the
Council’'s annual Homelessness Prevention Grant (currently £350,000 per annum)

RECOMMENDED that
1) the report and the achievements of PORCH be noted; and

2) officers support PORCH in its efforts to secure funding for 2009/10 to
continue the Service.

HEAD OF HOUSING SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC3

24.2.09

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

CARDPORCH Outline Strategic Plan April 2009 — March 2012 and Quarterly Statistics 2007-2009

Page 44



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agenda ltem

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

ALLOTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To report to committee the progress made to date on the action plan outlined in the
revised Allotment Strategy, adopted by the Council in 2007.

To set out further actions planned for 2009/10 (see Appendix I).
BACKGROUND

The original Allotment Strategy adopted in 2002 was revised in 2007. The revision
built on the achievements of the first strategy, and identified the significant
improvements in occupation levels and success in meeting the needs of plotholders.

The continuing high demand for allotments has put considerable pressure on the
Council officers to provide new plots to meet this. In addition 2008 saw the
continuance of a number of existing projects and development of new ones.

Five target areas are identified within the strategy

Ensuring sufficient allotments
Promoting allotment gardening
Encouraging sustainability
Cultivating good administration
Maintaining adequate resources

aobron=

Using these headings an action plan has been produced, which identifies specific
targets.

PROGRESS IN 2008

Larger plots continue to be divided into smaller ones wherever practicable. These
smaller plots not only enable a higher number to have access to a plot, but suit the
requirements of many younger working people. To this end a further 18 full size 10
rod (250m2) allotment plots were split into 5 rod plots as they became vacant on
sites across the city. Overgrown areas of land at Mincinglake Road Allotments have
been cleared and let, providing 8 additional plots.

There are 26 Council Allotment sites in Exeter, providing around 1365 Plots, an
increase of 72 plots since 2007. Despite this, earlier in the year there were no
available plots, and the decision was reluctantly taken to temporarily suspended
waiting lists in May 2008, due to overwhelming demand. At that time, there were
approximately 250 people waiting for plots, equating to over 18% of the total number
of plots.

Waiting lists have now been re-opened to accept applicants at ten sites. Itis
intended to re-open other sites when their current waiting list decreases.

Page 45

16



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

41

5.1

Equalities issues are being addressed by further provision of a new disabled
accessible facility at the Ashwood Road site in Alphington with raised beds of varying
heights and wheelchair accessible paths. Water for the plot is harvested from the
existing shed roof. This site compliments our existing fully accessible site at Marypole
Road Allotments.

Two new “self-composting” toilets have been provided at Hamlin Lane and Trews
Weir Allotments. The new toilets use no chemicals at all and provide usable compost
within 2 years.

Support was given for a new association at Stoke Hill (Marypole Road) by providing a
shed from which trading can take place.

Further works have been carried out to ensure that tracks within the allotments
enable users to safely access their plots.

ENSURING SUFFICIENT ALLOTMENTS

Unfortunately, part of the Trews Weir Allotment site has been put up for sale by the
landowner. The Council leases 2.46 acres of land here for allotments. The 73 tenants
have been served with Notices of Intended Re-entry, expiring on 20 September
2009. The allotment land is being marketed with fishing rights outside of the
allotments. The Council has made an offer for the land on which the allotments are
sited and the adjoining riverbank.

PLANNED WORK FOR 2009
Key actions planned for 2009 are to;

Continue to maximise the current available allotment space.

o Investigate starter plots to give an indication to new tenants the hard work that is
entailed in looking after a plot. These would be for people on the waiting list as a
taster, before being allocated a plot.

e Endeavour to secure future additional provision within existing financial
constraints, particularly further self-composting toilets.

e Introduce greater sustainability awareness.

Investigate water harvesting and other measures to reduce the use of treated
water for crops.

o Provide further security to perimeter fencing of vulnerable sites

o Take further measures to try to prevent flooding of plots, specifically at
Clapperbrook Lane.

¢ Investigate the use of raised beds on otherwise unusable areas of allotment land.

¢ Investigate whether charges could be made for allotment clearance
Install self shut-off taps near toilets for washing of hands.

Further details are provided in the Appendix.

RECOMMENDED that
1) progress is noted and future proposals contained in the action plan are
approved.

Page 46



HEAD OF CONTRACTS AND DIRECT SERVICES

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC9
24.2.09

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



yons Aq spasm snoroiuiad Jo |013u0d

Joj |eusjod ssasse

0} pauinjal aue (10S poob Jo sease

suonedo| Bunsixe anocidwi)

8y} ‘'swaysAs abeurelp Buljeisul ‘Bo 0} SajIs Juswio|e uo sy.ed Jeo Buisixa ajdwexs Joy "Sjuswijoje
S9)is anodwi 0} soue)sISSE 10l | JO seale pasnun [|e )siT ‘seale Bunyied Jeod Jayunj ssesseay bunsixa jo asn ayj asilIXepy o))
"suoljeoso| Jo adoos |ewlou ‘pajenojen
3y} apisino sayis |enusjod Jayjo Ajusp| 8q p|no2 J0 pajeljsuowisp
"uoisinoid Juswiole S| puewsp alayp omawiel 4
MBU 81n2as 0} S|0ju0d Buiuue|d Buisn Juswdojana(g 8207 8y} woly Buisue
ul }sisse 0} sisuue|d Ag pasn aq ued Aysuap uonejndod ul sabueyo Ajayi|
uonewwIojul SIy| "umouy eale ||ejoys 0} pJebai yum ‘uoijeooy |eljuspisal
JO seale pasi|edo) jey) os ‘uolsiroid Aue Jo snipel aj1Ww-3uo e uiyIm
Bunsixa 0} yojew o} sapoojsod 9IS juswjyojje ue apinoid o} Wiy
Aq Ansuep uonendod psuueld 10|14 '9|qIssod se Jej se 9[0Iyan Aq |anel) (0661 1oy Buiuue|d Aunog pue
0} paau 8y} 8onpaJ 0} asuas sayew }| UMO] 8y} Jo 90} uonoas pue 4g)
awi} sIyj souls Jo|d B 8in23s 0} A} 8y} SS0J0E [9AEB.) s|esodoud Buluue|d eIA Jo aoeds
asn Juawiojle Jo b1 ays ul Bumainai 0} pasedaud aie siapjoyjold [enusiod uado Bulsixa wouy Jow aq ued
Spaau 3IoM SIy] 'H00Z Ul Spaau /| 9dd "‘Buiwooypoy Jou sem "uolsinoud JuaaIng Jo yoe| abueyd oiydesbowap 0} snp 220
J9aW 0} pue sjuswaaibe gg| uonoag Jo abe|j0) seko7 15 18 S| 8J8y} J0 paquIsqns -1aA0 AjiAeay Jey) saiouaiolsp puewlsp |el1oos
Juswabeuew ay} Jo ped se uayeuapun | gOOZ Ul PaLIIUSPI PUE aJe sjuswiolly alaym pajeblysaul 1o [e20j Aue Jayjaym ajebiysanu|
SeM JIpny @0edg usdQ 21lgnd v | [enuajod Ajsieunpojun Buieq aJe seys Jeuonippe jenusiod puewsp ur ssbueyd bunaspy a1
|9AS) '600¢
Aoueuas) ui suljo8p usppns Jo sesned Jsquisydag 0z uo ELE]
‘B ‘uoisinoud Juswio|je aye Ajesianpe | uoIssassodal papuajul o1bsjel)s e Je suoneoiddy Buiuue|d
pInom jey) sjesodoud 1o sjealyy Ayusp) 4O 8010U paAJss Usaq | Jo Juswabeuew aajoe ay) alinbai |Im
oAeY sjueus) |je jey} | SIyl dJJomswel Juswdojans( |eso
'0S | 1OV 9y} jo swalinbal | sy woly Buisue Ayisusp uonendod ui
Op 0] }salajul JopIm 8y} SI JI 8I19Uym ays € Sl }| "J8UMO JuslIno sebueyo Aoy 0} psebal yjm ‘1e1exy "J9}ox3 Joj uoisinoid
Jusueunad o} snjejs jo abueyo yees pue ay} Aq ajes Joj ale Ul uoneoo| |enuapisal Aue Jo snipel Sjuswijo||e JO [9A9] By} Ule}ay
says Aiesodwal Jo snjejs ay) ajeblisoaul | SJUBWIO|Y JIGAA SMaIL | Sjiw | ulyIm ays Juswio||e ue apInoid “UoIS|A0JId BuisIxa bBuipienbajes Vi
01/6002 P3al3uapl suoljoy 6/800Z uayej uonoy sjabuie} Jesodo.d 3oy

Page 49

‘opew aJe sjesodoud Buimojjo) sy} puewsp pauueld pue Buijsixe ssaippe 0} Jopio U ‘salis |[e Je s)si| Buiiem [euelsgns
ale alau jnsal e sy "uoyonpoud pooy |euosiad pue (90| Ut JSBISJUI SPIMUOITEU B UYIM PapIoulod aaey ABsjels ay) woly Buisiie sjuswanolduw ayL

01/6002 NV1d NOILDV

sjuawyo||y Juaioyng Buunsug L

} VIV 1394VL

I XIAON3IddV



'sasn Alejodwa} 4oy |enjusjod ay |
awooul bBunesauab jo Ayjiqissod ay
-Je|noiued ul Jepisuod

0} Sash aAleula}je Buluiexs Usypp

MB3IABI Japun Ajjuejsuod
Si SUOI}E20| SAlBUIS)E Jo uondo ay |

‘asn pue| |enualod AJyuspl 0} SI801440
Buiuuelq yum pjay usaq aaey sbuiesiy

'siseq

Buises| e UO SjUBLWO|(E 10} puE| ash

0} ‘AlislaAlun 8y} ‘saipoq 2dlgnd Jayjo
‘saljlloyiny |e207 Jusdelpe ‘68 ‘siayjo
yum Buppiom diysisuped ajeblisanu|

‘'ss200.d Buluue|d ay} uiyym ajqissod
s se Je} sk pasiubooal ale uoisiroid
Juswioje o} SPBaU JapIM 8y} ainsug

‘18w ale A|ddns pue puewap
a1aym uana Buinow Jo JNOAEY Ul B1.
SJUBUS) JI B|ge|IBAB 3I18UM SUOI}EDO|

anljeulale Builayo J1apisuo)

ERIVESEDN
aAoIdWi 0} uado suondo buidasy

at

‘aue
yoougladde|n Ajjeoioads ‘sjoid papoo))
Juanald 0} A1} 0} sainseaw Jayuny aye|

‘Buljios-8J pue saueIquaW
a|eos abue| Jo asn 8y} Se sainseaw

sjo|d dn axe} 0} 9|qe
SJUBUS)} MaU PUE S)sI|
Buinem jo uoionpal
3y} ui paynsai

slyL ‘pajedisanul
sjo|d papuajun

pue JaALl 3y} JO }JSOM
usxepspun jipne jo|d

‘sjoid
|leuonippe g Buipiroid
‘18] pue pales|d ussq

aABY SJUBWIO|Y Peoy
aye|Buoupy 1e pug|
JO seale umoibianQ

‘S9SN SAEBUIS)E

pasijeuad jou ale (swnw Bunok

‘6-9) ,suaples) ainsia, se sjo|d sy}
asn oym asoy} ainsua o} jJuswabeuew
jnjaied saiinbai yoeolidde

SIY] "SI8yJo 0} }9| 8q 0} pawlie|dal

a.le pue| pajeainoun jo sabejuassad
abie| yum syoid pue ‘sjoid

118y} Ylom A|aAijoe sjueus) jey} ainsug

'sj0id jo dn a)e} Bunjuanaid

aJe $10)J0B} 9SdY} SISUM |10S

pue uolipuod joid o0} syuawaroldu|
‘Ainoas pie 0} Bunueld

UM S18ul109 pasnun Buljyul pue
Bunue|d abpsy Aq padoueyus siejiqeH
‘Buyied Jeo 1oj punolb

Jood Jo seale Ajuo Buisn ‘UolleAl}nd

19| 8 jouued jey) sayis Jo sued
10 SB)IS IO} SaSh SAlJBUIS)E SUIWEXT

01/600¢ Payuapl suondy

6/800C ua)ej uoiloy

sjabie]

jesodoud

39y

Page 50



suondo esiway)d

ON, pejebaibas alow Ajuap|
"suoloLsal

Ayngow yym sjdoad o}

pa)iNs al0W 9SOy} Se seale
Buyled Jed pue seouesud

0} }saleau s)oid yieuweg

'£00¢ Ul piq VY
uoljeulwosip Ayjigesiq jnjsseoons
e woJj papuny Buiag uoisinoid paq

pasiel yym suosiad pajgesip pue
3|ge yjoq 10} $S399. apinoid [Im
SjUBWOo||Y POOMYSY Je 6002 [Udy
Aq pajejdwod aq 03 ‘1oalosd mau v

‘JUBSEA aW093aq Aoy}

uaym Bunids s|qissod 1o} payns
Jaguinu e paljjuspl aaey pue
sjoid pJepuejs-uou jo Ayjiqissod
3y} 0] LUaje mou ale siabeue
'sj0|d J3jjews jo

abejusolad e pey aAey sals ||y

:sj0|d dnoub pue sjo|d Japenb

pue jey ‘sjo|d pJepuejs ajeudoidde
aJaym ‘apndul |m siyL "solyje
puUE Spasu JUaJIayIp INS 0} a|ge|ieAe
sjo|d jo abuel Japim B axew o
safjijenby

=14

ajsgom
$|IoUN0Y 8y} JO MaIAL
Jolew ayy Buimojjoy Bunepdn
pue Buix231j2ss010 aiinbai
[I!M UOijeuLIojUl JUBWIO||Y

spJeoq ad13ou
yum paddinbs ale sajis SO
‘uonoas o|dosad aA0Y,

ay} Japun pajs|| aJe sjuswio|y
pue ‘pasinal a)is gam syied
(g os|e a9s) 49| Jual

600¢ Ud4eN au} yum uoisnjoul
J0j paonpoud Aaains Jssn

SHIApPE,

Jadedsmau wouj pajIAuL OS|e alam
s)s1| Buyiem jo Buiuado ay) pue
Jaulalul BY} UO M3IA O} 8|ge|lene

S UOIJeWLLIOJUI SSIDUOD pue JES|O
‘suonjeoijdde Jayun; o} pepusdsns
suoljeoljdde sajs swos YNAA

"S[ENPIAIPUI pPUB SUOIJBID0SSE
Aq pasn ag osje ued yolym
‘spJeoq ao1jou 3)Is-Uo pue
‘UOIJEDIUNWIWOD-9 SPIEMO]

Bunuiod ‘pajepdn uoljewlojul

Buidaay jo suesw ay} uo
sSnooj B 9 OS|e jsnwi aJ1oy] e

's19sn Jo abuel }sepim

8y} 0} 9|qIssa22€ Ajipeal

pue Auea|o sI senss| juswijojje
Uo UOIJBWLIOJUI 8JNSUT e

sp.teoq 821j0u 10}

s19)s0d uofjewloul Jo salIes
8y} eonpoudal pue asjepdn e

suolnowo.d

Jayjo 0} yulj ayepdn

JenBas apinoid 0} Ases

s! sy} ‘joo} uonewuout swud
SE 9)IS JOM 3SN 0} SNUUOD e

8[| |euoijipel

‘Buimolb oiuebio ‘Buial Aylesy
‘B8 ‘suonowoid 18Y}o Y)m SHUIT
UoljeuULIojul SISO

sayIs

jo abuels 1apIM B UO Sa)Is/sawll}
Koy 1e siaysod/spieoq Aejdsiqg
sjo|yduwied

:Buipnjoul ‘uoijewIoUi [NJBSN
MOJ|0} 0} Asea o uotonpoud ay
UOIJEDILUNLILIOD Ul S9SSauyeam
1964e) pue uo anosdwi 0} aNUUOY
uonedIuNwWwo))

\' 44

01/600Z payuapl suoljdy

8/,00C uayjej uoijdoy

syobie]

|esodoid

f ok

paAleoal sey 10algns ay| uonendod ay} jo uoiuodoid abie| B AQ Jjousq a|qensiyde pue s|qelissp Ajlswa.xa ue se panieoad s| sa|qejeban pue jiny

‘papueqstp sey uonelapa Juswio|y 1ayexy
By} USUM BWI} B Je ‘JIoUNoD 8y} Wwoly Hoddns yim pasi|elASI USSq SABY SUOHEI0SSY jJuswio|ly 'sdnoib poddns pue Jaad lJoj Jojeyijioe) & se usas aq pjnoys

jouno) ey "siep|oy joid Buuidse 1o mau Joy Aj[e1oadss ‘|ans| (00| e Je 2ouepInb pue SOUE]SISSE SE UOeULIojUI JUBAS|S) Ayjenb poob apinoid 0} pasu
oy} sulewal a1ay) [esauab ul Aolignd aaisod Buiaizoal si 1oalgns 8y} Is|iym JSASMOH "BIPSL SMBU 8y} JO wnJjoads apim B Woly Juswasiopus pue Ayolgnd

P00y} umo INoA moib o} Ajuniioddo ayy yeyy ut Ajleuoneu pue £||eoo| pa1nodo sey abueyd Jueoiubis B ooz Ul uspum sem ABajen)s Juswio|ly isdiy sy} aouls

Bujuap.es Juawyo||y Bunowoid

[4

¢ V3NV 139uvl

Page 51



0} @ouaiaje.d ui sjew
Buiyojnw Jo asn sy} sjowold

pue Apybisun se |0JjJuU0d paem se
sjadied Jo asn Jo ueq sjeblisanu|

Jaguinu ayj ul 8sealoul ue o} pa|
sey sayis Jo jJuswabeuew aAl)SOd

JUBDBA WOJ} pass Jo pealds ay)
2onpal pue ymolb pasm |0Jjuo)
JUepodwr aJe seoueleaddy

ac

"10/d € pajeso|e

Bulaq ai0jaq ‘ Jo)se}, e

se jsl| Buiyem ay) uo a|doad
10} 8q pjnom asay ‘jod

e laye Buyoo| ul pajiejua

S1 Jey} JJom piey ay} sjueus)
M3U 0} uoleolpul ue oAb

0} .s)old Japels, sjebiissnu|

"003 wol) poddns

Buinieoal pue pawioy Ajmau

S| UOI}BID0SSY Juaw)o||y ajodAiepy
pUE SUOHEBIDOSSY "YOIMOD

pue sewoy| 1S Ul pasijelinal
Usa(q aABY SUOIJBID0SSY JUSWIO|Y

‘Busj-a. 03 Joud sjord

pajeoea abeuew 0] anunuon
S9JIS }SOW U0 8B SPIe0qadlioN
$9JIS }SOW Uo

aoe|d Ul ale saAljejuasaldal a)g

diysssuped Jeyeq Buibeinoosus
saAljejuasaldal

dlIs JO uoionposul sy} Buiebiysaaul
spJeoq @21j0u Jo asn

:AQ sajel Jno

doup Ajiea adnpai 0} pue siap|oy
10|d pasualiadxaul 10 mau oy djay
a)is U0 pue aled Jawolsno anoldw|
S3IgMaN

ac

0| os|e 88g

‘suoseal Jay}o 1o Ayjigesip

JO asneoaq seale |jews Ajuo
Buiysim asoy} 1o} spaq pasiel
10} pas|iIN 89 pnoo Jey)
sjuawijol|e jo sease Ayjusp|

"suoloiusal Ayjiqow

yum ajdoad o) pajns aiow
9SO0U} Se s)ue} Jajem / seale
Buied 1ed pue sasueljus

0} }JsaJeau sjo|d yiewie]

',00¢

ul piq Joy uoijeulwLosip Ayjigesiq
[nySS$820NS B Woly papuny buaq
uoisinold ypm suosiad pajqesip
pue 9|qe yjoq 1o} ssaooe apiroid
(M AjI0B) 9)qISS290. JHieyd|aaym
sIyL " 6002 IMdy Aqg pajeldwod aq
0} SsI spaq pasiel Jo sjybiay Buifiea
10 Buisisuoo ‘sjodAie je jey) 0}
Jepuais ‘108loud mau e uojbuiyd)y

ul SjusWiollyy PECY POOMYSY 1Y

‘aouejsisse
awos aAey sjo|d Jiay} Buijiom Jo
0} Buiiab ul AYndip swos aney

oym 3soyj jeyj os sahljiqesip
JoA3] 1amo), Ayyuspl 0} pasN
"sajIs oiy10ads je san|ioe} apinoid
0} Sl [9A3] sIY} Je yoeoudde
9JqISUSS JSOW dy} aiojalay) ‘sayis
0} USALIP 3JE 10 SALIP S3lNoIIP
Ayjigow yyum asoyy uoniuyep Ag
"So)s Juawiojle ||e 1e Buiuapiedb
olueblo 1o puewap 1o asn

pajgesip 1o} [enuajod ayy Ajusp)

"9)Is juswyjo|e

M3U B U0 10 awayos juawanoidwii
9)is Jo Med se ‘sjoid Jueoena jo eale
ue Jo uonesijelinal ay} jo yed se

8Q PIN02 siy] "pajedlpul si puewsp
alaym ‘asn oluebio 10} 10 SaI NP
AMligow yym esoyy Joy ajgelns

sjo|d ajeuisap pue Ajjuapl o
spaau olyivadg

o4

‘saljijigesip
eaisAyd 7 Buiuies] ypm
sdnoib io} yoddns psnuiuo)

Jay1ebo) padnolb Ajjuanbauy

ale asay] 'sjo|d uawijoje dn axey
0} pabeinoous uaaqg aaey sdno.b
2abnjal pue 21uy}s Jo Jaquinu Y
sjo|d pJepuels

-uou Jo Ajjigejieae ay} alaymas|a
pue 8)isgem ay} U aSILaAPY

yliesy |i!
Aq pasned sanljigesip Alelodwe)

aAey oym sjueus] poddns o]
"anjeA Jgjnoiued

sey sa|qejaban pue JjinJy
oi10ads Jo uoIBAI}ND 3y} wWoym
10} SaljlIouIW 8SOY) 0} S)Iyauaq
ay} Aenoied ‘syuswiofe

10 JUSWIg|e [eI100s ay) asiubooay
‘Buiuapieb jo spoyjsw olueblio
10} YSIM Oym 8s0uy} 104 1aje)

01/600¢ P3al13uapl suondy

8/L00T u3)e} uondy

sjabie}

|esodoad

9y

Page 52



"sainjonis Jo uedsayl Ayjuap)

"SJUBWI]O||B UO saljijioe}
pue ainjonJiseljul sy} uo
wawabpnl anjea e Buyew ul
isisse jjim siyj juswiabeueiu
a)is 0} yoeouidde sjgejnbs
pue pasuejeq e ainsus

0} SaJIS ||e JO JusWssasse
Ajjenb e ajepspun

'S8)IS JOY}0 8y} 10}
saiji|1o.} Jayuny apinoid o} Jybnos
aq |m Buipuny pue uoisinocid siy}
aABY MOU JIDA\ SMB1] pue sueT]
UljweH ‘sajis om| ‘paiijuapl sl asn
jeuoldaosxa aiaym sayis Je s}9|10}
Bunsodwog Jjas jo ash ajebisanu|

‘|le Aq ssa00e abeinoous
0] UOKIPUOD Poob ui pauiejuiew
8( 0] pSaU SYoBl} pue SPEOY

"SO)IS 3y} OJuo saljiwe} Bunok yum
asoy) pue uswom Buibeinoous
Ui |EJIA SB U33s ale s}9|io]

("suonelnossy Juswio|y ay} 1o}
snooj ay} apinoid syny Buiped])
"sjuswanoidwi pue aosueusURW
ue|d o3 syny Buipes) Buipnjoul

‘dn jos usaq sey suswjo|e

Ul $a1njonujs ||e Jo aseqelep v

‘lIspue| pue sdiys Jo asn aonpal
0} suondo BuipAoal aseaiou|

"salijioe} a)is Jo Juawanoidwl

pue adueusjulewWw ay} pue

Auanoe jeuonjowoud Bulurejuiew
usamjaq ‘Aem pasuejeq

B Ul ‘890In0Sal 3|ge|leAe asijiiold

Sal}l|Iog} Jo uonnguisip Jie4 42
"pPaJapisuod
'$1S00 doUEBUdUIEW ‘sjo0id JueoeA aq ||m sao1j0eId 9|qeulelsSnS pue
Buionpal uiny ul ‘sjaAs)| uo uolnejaban [0J3uod 0} (3saisnq ABa)jel}S |BjUSWUOIIAUT S |I0UN0)D
fouednooo ybiy Buinsiyoe aJe yeis syled usym) spouad | 8y} yum Buidssy ul ‘spoyisw Jayjo
ul |njssaoons Aian uasqg yead je pasn aq ||IM SI0J0BIUOD ng Jawwiuls Agq suop aq ||im siy}
sey yoiym Apy sjoid Buidaay Ajleniu) Aq siassed pue sjueus)
Jo 9o10e1d a8y} anunuo) o) 10} y1oq a)is ay} jo sduesesdde
"sapIdIgiay ‘J10s 0} snopJezey Ajenuajod | 8ag “Bume) 1oy sjgejiene sjold Jo ay) anosdwi im siyg “syold

01/600¢ palpuapl suody 8/.00¢ usyej uoljoy sjabie] jesodoid 9y

Page 53



(siapjoy "A)ISI9AIPOIq @0UBYUS 0] Buisn senoiped u) sdnoub ajpjim
joid Ag asn J0y) Buioiddoa pabeuew aie syueq sseib Aldwis 1o suonejueld '9’] SUOIJBIDOSSE JIaY) pue sJap|oy
[9ZBY pue MOJ|IAA JBpISU0D ‘sabpay ‘siaulod ppo ul 1o swae|qosd Juswijojie ay} yum diysisuped
sasie Ajunpoddo ay} aseym paam |eluusiad a18Aas ypm sjo|d ‘syued Ul sjeligey ay|p|im panoidwil 1oy
smouabpsy aoueyua 0} anuiUoD Jed pue sauepunoq je ‘6 |eoloeid JoAsISUYAL | SsUe Jey) sanjunpoddo Jspisuod o) | og
‘a|ge|leAB USUM SUOIIEID0SSY "©TVSN
SnoLleA 8y} JO SNOVY UOIJeID0SSY |10S '00SSY Yyoleasay Aepajgnoq yum syui ybnouayy Ajjeuorjeu pue
Spuajje Jao1)j0 SjusWo|lY 3y L KiuaH ‘SHY B8 $804n0s Jo abuels B wouy A|1e20] Yj0q JuSIBAOW JUBWIO|E
"0} SNV }e SUOIjeIo0SSE ay) aouepinb pue uoljewlojul JUBAS|aI 10} HNPUOD ay} ul Apealje asipadxa ay)
Joj sejepdn apinoid 0} anuuo) pue Jojusuwi B sk Joe pjnoys JIouno) AJD syl | U0 melp o} suoneroosse abeinoouy | ge
"sapionsad Jo [emelpyim ay) buipiebal
Ajjenadsas ‘siseq Jejnbal e uo s|qejieae
Wy} | epew uoijewuojul pue ‘pabeuew AjaAjoe aiow
Inoge sjule|dwod | aq 0} pasu Jm siapjoy joid Aq sepionsad Jo asn
Jo Jojpasu ul | 8y "Spoyjow Jayjo O} uin} 0} SABY [|IM Siapjoy
uoljonpal ||eJano ue 10(/d ‘umelpy)m Buiag suoleNWIo) [ediWaYd
“pue| JUSWIO||Y JO | Ul s}nsal poob yum 10} |eAcsdde yym ‘pajosal aiow sawosaq
seale pasnun ssimiIaylo uo spaq | sbuiwy s|qissiwiad asn spionsad unejewe sy “sapionsad 1o}
pasiel Jo asn ay} ajebysanu JajuIm o} spew pasu ayj seonpai jey} ad1joe.d poob pue asn
sabueyd Buiwn pue olueblio Buibeinoous Jo aunyno e aq 0} spasu "soplalysad pue siozi|iua)
‘'Spoyiaw dAljeuld)|e Jejiwis pue Syjuow Jswwns | aJsay] siap|oy juswiojie ||e 0} aoijoeld oueblio 0} saAljeula)e ouebio Buipnjoul
sanbiuyos) Bip-ou ‘Bunsodwos | jnoybnouy) psuueq poob uo soiApe BuiAIb uonew.o) apInod | Soioeld [BjusWUOIIAUS poob poddns
Jo uonjowoud sy} anunuon MOU 3Je salljuog Vg 98g | ‘s|qissod assym pue ‘ebeinodus o] | ye
8/L00¢C
01/600Z p3ayiuap! suondy usye} uonay syabie} lesodoid 9N

"asn oluebuo, 1o} pajeubisap si sjoid Jo eale

Ue aiaym jdaoxs ‘suoljelnbal pue sejns ybnouyy Lo1oI909 Jou uoisensiad Aq payoeoidde q |IM JUSWHWWOD SIY} JOASMOH “(SIS)|1Y POSM puE sapio1buny
'SSPIOIOBSUI SSPNIIUI SIY}) SOpIolsad Jo asNn By} SSIWIUIL 0} JUSWHIWWOD B Sey [19unog 8y (-Buuasjusiwiole 4o Jadse juaiayul Ue si )1) Ajjiqeurelsns o
sanss| uo ajgeabpajmouy pue pajiiys Aiea sie siepjoy joid Auejy Juensial aie Buiuspieb sjqeureisns Jo sajdiound ‘syuswio|je JO Bale pajeAl}nd ay} UIYIAA

‘uoisinoid JusWiO||e JO JUSWIISP Sy} 0} JOU SI SIY} 8INSUS 0} PAPasU S| 8Jed INg ‘ash ojul yoeq BuIwod Jo 1adsold JNsIjeas ou ABY Jey) SUOHIas
pue seale Buibpay uf anjea ayip|im dojansp o) utewas saunpoddO  “ayi|p|IM 10} JIgey Yol & aie Aay) sueaw s Juswio|e ue uo ssoads jue|d jo abuel ay |

‘soeds uado o1gnd 1oy a)nisgns e aq Ajjnj Jouued sy} Jey) uesw sjuaWIo|je
0 spasu A}Lndas By} UOASMOH "9ZiS U 90NpaJ 0} anuijuod suspieb se ‘eoeds usalb Jo Baie SjqESdIOU PUE Sjqen|eA A[BUISEIOUI UB SPIACID SBYIS JUSLUIO
! S Ul ! | ! | | jbul ! Pt i

Ajjqeureysng Buibeinoosug ¢

€ VAV 139¥v1L

Page 54



saAleniul bulpAoal

Bujobup psemalajowosd o} saiiunpoddo ajebiisanu| Buiohosy | 4¢
‘spuey jo Buiysem 1o} s39|10}
Jeau sdej JJo-Inys J|os [jeisu|
'$991n0s punoiblapun wo.y
J9)em joelisqe o} sanljigissod
ay} Ajipuspl pue ajebisanu| pajowo.d
di} ajsepp usalo) ay) saljalien pue
woJy siseq Jejnbal e uo s|qejiee sal0ads juejsisal
apew s| jeusjew pajsodwon wbnoup jo asn
pajebiseaul iajem
puiaq sI abeloys pue [I0S 8siWixXew o} Jajem Jo asn sjgeuieisns Jajaq Buibeinooua
aunjdeo usjem utel Jo asn ayj | Buiddouo jo Buiwi | pue Buiowoud ul aAioe oud alow ag Jajem jo asn pue Alddng | 3¢
‘JoyJe| siawle ay} o asn g|qissod
ay} Jo s)ny juawjojje ui shep ajes
apnhjoul Aew asay] -pajebiysaaul
aq p|noys spuawjo|e uo paosnpoud
so|qejaban pue pnyy snjdins
[los 0} suoijeloosse Joj saijiunpoddo
‘Buiuspseb s|qeuleisns
‘pabeinosus AjaAoe aq pinoo pue uo of seop Jo oiuebio abeinoous pue
suonesiuebio |eoo| Buuspeq 1o Buyas ooy py (syny Buipes; ay) je Buiusp.ieb aaiosys 100 uoddns o}
ajeldosdde 0} pue sjeylew je '8'3) "|oA8] 820 je UBAS 1o siseq Jejnbai e uo | Buipel; sjeudoidde pue suoijeicosse
ales Jo Ayjiqisesy sy} ajebijsanul unyy pue ss|qejaban snjdins Bui|as Joj Loddns Jusawijojje ay; Jo JuswdojaAsp
0} unbaq aney sJ90IO Jo Ayjiqe jeuonesiuebio ay) 194 jou sI alsy | ay} yoddns o} anuiuo) | Q¢

Buiwwigs Jo s|ans|
ybiy ‘6o soueusjulew Aiessadauun aonpay

‘Buibpay ajdwexa
10} ‘8)IS Y} UIyIM salnjes) |einjeu

Page 55



3|9 oo sayis dejy 0} pepuswe eseqeleq | ‘'SIO D@ ‘1| a|qe|ieAe jo ash axey | pue Buiunoooe jo Ajiejo aaoidw 0) anNUUO) | O
suswanosduwl
pue siiedal jo Ayjenb 3oayo
0} SYoayo Ajjeal, eyeuapun
‘Alddns
13)em JO Juswssasse ay) aja|dwo) "uo)|AH/sAno "sjuswsnoiduwl o) spuny a|gejiene
‘sawiwelboud uawanoidwi Jayio pue ¥21M0) "oul ‘'sa)is Jo uonesnoud ay) ul suonerosse ay}
LWIOJuUl 0} JUled| SUOSSd| dy} asN |BJaASS Je INo palled sassauyeam Ajiuap| )JNSUOD 0} puUe S3}IS Y]} JO SINJONIISEUl 3y}
4z 993 sjuawanoldwl yoel ] $8$8900NS U0 pjing 0} 9oueBUajUIBW |BllUaSSa dIseq Jno Aed o] | gy
_ ‘saAljeljlul pue puads
ainny Aue Buisiuoud ‘swajqold Buirjosal
‘gz 99S 'sdnoib Ul siaguiaW Jiay) Jo SMaIA ay) Jussaidal
"J19Y10 YOoBa UM | JE[IIS JO SUOIJeI00SSY JusWiojly ou Aja1einooe 0} ‘Buiuapleb juswioje Jo s}so0o
diysisuped ui pue jom Apualino ale aiay) alaym seale ul ay] aonpai 0} saoiAlas Buipely sjelndoidde
}IOM 0} Suoljeoossy | pabeinoous Ajaaijoe aq pinoys pue | pue Ayjieay sAey o} Jejnoiped ul ‘siap|oy 10id
BunsIxa }SISSE PUB | ‘S|9A3) JO J8qWINU B UO [B1O)2US] 81k |  J1ay} Jo) winioy [njasn e Buipiaoid ul 8AnoE 9q
aoue)sISSe UoIJeIo0SSE anuijuo) | abeinoous 0} panuiuo) | sdnois) JUsWO||Y pue SUOeId0SSY 0} SUOIEBIO0SSY JUSWIO||Y 3y} abeinodus 0] | v
01/600¢ paljpuapl suoidy 8/,00¢ Ud)e} uoidy jobue] Jesodoid 9y

0 wawidoiaasab au >
Aadl ettt | il b | - Halleel

‘suoljeIs0sse ay) Jo awdojaasp ayy Buioddns pue aousipne Jepim B 0} sa)is Jo uojowold Juswabeuew
[eloueuly ‘Buiuue]d pIemio) ‘a1e9 J1aWOoISNo a)is-Uo JaYlad Jo sjyeuaq ay) umoys sey ABalelS Juawo|ly 1S4 U} JO SLdj B} 1SN0 sjuswanoldwi ay |

‘panosdwi Ajoaissalboud si pjay pue papo9 si uoliewlojul
UoIUM Ul Aem ay) Jey) Juepodwi Si )l SPeW SUOISIOSP PaWLIojUI Pue paAsiyde aq o} si uoledioiped |njbuiuesw pue panosdwl J| “wasAs juswabeuepy
19SSy Y} O] PaJIajSUBI] 8 PINOD SIY} JI [BIOYBUS] 89 PINOM }| "866| 10V UONHD8J0Id BB 28U} 0} JoBigns aseqelep e UO paulejulew aie Splodal Iy

"2jqeuojwo9 ate Aay) yoiym
Ylm |9A3} 8y} e ‘dnosb yoes 1oy uonedioed wnwido ay) sbeinoous 0} wiope|d e apiroid pinod sUoIjeIo0SSE JUSWIO|E 8y} JO Juswdojanap jusoal ay |

‘pepoaU 8q OS|E PINOM [19UN0D 8y} Woiy Hoddns jng ybnous Buosis st dno.b
£ JO JUSLLJILULLOD 3} JI }SIxa Aew [enusjod JoremoH "sJapjoy Juswiol(e ||e Ag pauisap Jo Sa)is |8 10} S|qeHns 89 Jansu Aew )| dnolb siyj Jo Jusjiwwiod pue
}IOM PJEY B} O} 8NP S$S299NS B US3Q SBY awayos Juswabeuew-j|as sy ‘1ounod ayi Aq Ajoauip pebeuew si (JISA\ Smal]) 'alis suo jdadoe e asaud )y

‘Juswabeuew

uoljensIuIWpPY poos Buneanng

aiand siyy Jo Buiuuni JUSIDILS 8U1 IO} [BIIUSSSS S| UONBJISIUILPE PUB SPi0da. poob 10} pasu ay |

L4

¥ VIUV 130¥Vl

Page 56



‘Buipuny saiyiienb3 s jiouno ayy ydnoldyy pansiyoe ussq
sey Buipund 'sewayds AJunwiwod pue suopowold pajejal yieay Jo) SaAelul Buipuny A1ej307 snoLiea ay} sjdwexs Joy ‘ebiows Aew uolessush awodu Ioy
saunuoddo Jay)0 'spues) A19j07 Jo uolun ueadoing JUSWIUIBA0L) YBnoly) Buipuny [euls)xs SWos ulejqo o} saljlunpoddo aq Aew aiay} swiy 0} swiy WOl

("ssnuoyIne [eoo| Jayjo woyy erep aAlesedwod swos ypm ABajens ayj 4o g xipuaddy Ul UMOYS S19M SJUNOJSIP PUE sabieyo
JUSLIND BY L "SWB}SAS JUNODSIP JUBIBYIP SABY SBIHIOUINE [BO0] SE }NDIYIP SI SJuSJ JO UOSLEAWOD 108II) "SAYIS BY} UO SOUBUS)UIBW SPUNOIB [eo104o se
llom se pauue|d pue sAijoesl Jo) papasu si i se uolesiiold njased spasu JaBpng sy} Jo Hed siy) sjusWaAoIdWI PUE SOUBUSIUIBL 10} SI 0S0'6L3 SIY} JO

‘90IAJSS Juswiojje 8y} 104 8jqe|iene 010 y9F JO ()0} B BUINIB ‘0G| Z3F JO swodu) [ejual pajebpng ay;
Aq psjusws|ddns ‘Jeah sy} 10} 09Z'ZH3F SEM SIY) ‘6/800Z 1€ SY ‘[1ouno ayi Ag papiroad Ajuaind 1ebpng ay) jo umopsealq Alewwns e sanlb xipuaddy

‘AjiAioe |euonowold pue uolew.oul ‘sanijioe) S)is 0} sjuswanoidw BuijeW Ul JUSWISSAUI [BIUBISGNS US3] SBY ey

$921n0say ajenbapy Bulurejuiep S
S VIV LIDVVL
Buryueq pue uonos||0d "Se[eosaul)

JuaJ u1 Ajqold pue Aoeinooe ainsus
0} JIpNy JO @oUEjSISSe anuuo)

aullspIind ulyum spew syuswied |je pue
‘PayuUEq pue P3JOS}0D SI WO jlE aINsU] | O

sdnoub
Bunsixe ypm uosiel| ulejuiepy|

"uoisinoud Juswiojje Japeolq ul
s}insaul sy} ji Ajjeroadsa saipoq Jayjo
yum juswsbuelse Bupsuped Aue jo
ped se juswabeuew-jjas Japisuo)
sdnoub Buisixs yym uosielj uiejuiepy

‘Wed ul Jo Ajjoym Jayie
Juswabeuew-j|as spiemo} SAOW O} Ysim
oym sdnoub o} eoinpe pue poddns apinoid 0] | 4t

(sbuneaw uosiel|

VYV uybnouyy ‘6-s)
SS8UBAIIO_}JS JOHUOW

/002 Ul paydope Ajjewlo) ajam
suonenbsay pue sajiny maN ay L

‘sjuswijo|je

10} UOISIA JUB.IND 8y} J09|}01 S9SEd)/saloueUS)
ay) pue dojaAap 0} SaNUIU0D 82IAISS

3y} Jey} ainsus o} aq |m sIYy} Jo esodind

8yl ‘sieah ol Aians Jses| je ‘Ajjealpoliad

sAanins Jales 0}
uosuedwos ul sabueys pue spual)
Ayuapi 0} Aonins woly eyep asn

(vz osie ass) "ejep
9661 @y} eyepdn pue
Juswa|dwiod 0} AsAins
Jasn Jayjoue ayeuspun

(gz 99s) sayis Jsow
uo aoejd ul aue sannejussaldal a)Ig

Juswaalbe Aoueus} ay} MaInBI 0] | Ty

siapjoy joid (e 1o} aseo
Jawolsnd a)is uo ay} aAocidwi 0} snuiuo) | gy

2lemyos juswabeue)y 19ssy Jo
asn ayj Buipuedxs spiemoj 3IopA

sojIs ||e 404 Aoueus)
J0 sebueyo ||le apnpoul

J1° Ovdi

"80iAJ3S 9y} jO Juswabeuew uispow
104 (S19) walshs uonewloyu] [esiydelbosas)
e Bunesodioour weysAs Jandwod

pajesbajul sjebiisanul 0} pue Buiyew-uoisioap

01/600¢ payiuapl suondy

8/200Z Uaxe) uonay

jobie |

jesodoud Joy

Page 57



sjuswianosdwl
ainjonuiselul
JuswWiojje Jayuny puny
0] JapJo Ul uonejul
aAOQe 189S ale 0102
10} sasealoul Juay

Juswabeuew Jayem B2 sjuswanoidwl

|eydes aaisuadxe alow punj 0} uonjejul

aA0CE S8SEaIOU| JUJ JO SN|BA BU] JBpISU0)
‘g)elidoidde se sjuas asealoul 0} aNUU0D
IdY yum suij ul

sieak om] AJoAs pasealoul ale sjual JUswio||y

“PUILL Ul UOISN|DUI |EID0S pUE

Auanoe Ayjeay ‘uononpouad pooy S0 MO|
10 8njeA ay} Upm Ing ‘suf) 0} swir} Wody
pamalnal aq |m sableyo pue sesj a8yl | as

aouBIEgo JUBWIO|e
10} apew aq p|nod sabieys
Jayjoym ajebiisanu|

sdems pue| ‘6°9 ‘uoisinoid Juswiojie
0} JIjouaq ||eJano wua) Buol Jo aq pinom
1ey) sjesodoud Aue 0} usaIb ag 0} uoljesapIsSu0)

"salls Jo sued 10 ssys

S|gEeIA-UOU JO 3|eS 8} WOJ) SWOoUl BWOS
Bunesauab jo Ayiqissod ayj 0} usalb aq
[|IM UOI}B}NSUOD puB uolesspIsuod ang | 0§

‘Aypgeutejsns

pue saljljlenba uo snooy
Jgjnoied e ypm ‘swesl)s
Buipuny jeuoljippe

1N0 3a8s 0} aNUNUOYD

‘AY|lgeurelsns pue
saljijenba uo snooy senaiped e yim ‘swealis
Buipuny jeuonippe }no ¥8as 0} aNUUoH

ajeiidoidde punoy se A|dde
pue sjoafo.id jeuonowo.d 1o juawanoiduwil
1o} Buipuny [euIaixa Joj saijunpoddo ¥89s | dg

4¢ 99§

"'sawiayos Juawanoidwi
jo Buiseyd pue Bujuueld
wis) Buoj sy} anunuo)

‘Buiysaniey

Jajem yum pays
Buipely uoyAH/shkno
10} J0OJ MBN

‘sylom Jo Buiseyd pue

uonesnilold jo Buipuejsiapun ue ul psjnsal
sey O3dV 8u} pue SNVY ‘SeAlejussaidal
|31} USBMIa] SUOIEDIUNWIWOD paAcidwl 8y )

‘siap|oy 1o|d 0} UI8ou0Dd }sajeald Jo sanss| 8soy}

pajebie) sjuswanoidiul 8INJONISEIUl JUSWIO|Y

a|qe|leAe sa2inosal |ejded sy}

pue Buipuny Buuinbau osje sjosloud Jsyjo
1suieBe teak yoes sanuond Juswio|e sy}
18pISUOD [|IM {IDUNOD 8Y| "SUOIjeID0SSe
Juswioj|e pue sanljejuasaldal

P14 ‘SINVY 84l YIIM UONE}NSUOD

ur dn umelp ‘ueid uonoe pasiaal Ajlenuue
ue yum syoaloud uswanoidwi asplold | VS

01/6002 Paypuapl uondy

8/200Z udye} uonoy

sjobie)

|esodo.id Joy

-:ale siesodoid ay |

‘sjuswW]o||e pasu jsow oym a|doad A1en ay) J1oaye Ajosianpe pjnom

puB ‘yjeay AJuUNWWOD JO SWd} Ul SAIONPOId-I8JUN0D SB Ud3s g PIN0J Sy} "JeASMOH ‘Aiddns spaaoxa Apua.und puewsap se ‘Juai Buiseasoul Ag sjuswiyojje
Jo syuawalinbal A1eyebpng ay) aonpal o} |qissod ag Aew }| "3DIAISS Sy} UIBJUIBW 0} paJinbas Buipuny 8100 ay} apinold 0} Aj9xI| SI suoldo a8say} Jo JaylIsN

Page 58



Agenda Item 18

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

COMMUNITY SERVICES STEWARDSHIP TO 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 This report advises Members of any major differences by management unit to the
revised budget.
2, STEWARDSHIP TO 31 DECEMBER 2008
21 The five-yearly revaluation of Council properties has led to revised notional
depreciation charges, which are reflected as appropriate in the outturn variance for
each management unit. The estimates for 2009/10 will reflect the revised valuations.
The current forecast suggests after adjusting for AIM slippage and net movements
from reserves that net expenditure for this committee will decrease from the revised
budget by a total of £241,320, which represents a variation of 1.42% from the revised
budget.
2.3 The main variations by management unit are detailed below:
£
2008-2009 REVISED ESTIMATE 16,957,340
81A1 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (50,130)
A vacancy in the litter enforcement team has resulted in a net saving.
A backdated adjustment to the Supporting People grant has been
received.
The depreciation charge in this unit has decreased (see note 2.1)
81A2 CLEANSING SERVICES (61,380)
A Local Public Service Agreement in respect of Street Cleansing will
result in the receipt of a Performance Reward Grant.
Efficiency savings are anticipated in the Street Cleansing and Refuse
Collection services.
Electricity costs in Public Conveniences are expected to be less than
the estimate.
The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1)
e Action Point — the 2009/10 estimates will reflect the reduced
costs in these services.
81A3 LICENSING, FOOD, HEALTH & SAFETY (79,710)

Savings have arisen in respect of vacant posts in the unit. Additional
income has been generated from the Licensing activities.

e Action Point — the 2009/10 estimates will reflect the reduced
staffing costs in this service.

Page 59



81A4

81A5

81A6

81A7

TECHNICAL AND AGENDA 21 3,340

Net income from an external contract is expected to be less than the
estimated level.

WATERWAYS & COUNTRYSIDE 34,510

Agency staff costs have been incurred due to the need to cover long-
term sickness.

Additional costs are expected to arise in respect of maintenance of
the Canal and materials for buoys. A proportion of the additional
costs relate to payment of £17,500 for pontoon equipment; the budget
for this equipment was included in the previous financial year.

Boat maintenance costs and other fleet costs will exceed the
estimate. These costs will be offset by an expected increase in
income received from canal licences.

Further costs are expected to arise due to the ongoing work towards
the new harbour authority; these additional costs will be funded from
general reserves as approved by Executive in June 2003.

The cost of utilities is expected to exceed the estimate.

Staff costs in Countryside Services will exceed the estimate due to the
extension of a post within the section; savings on a post within the
Community Outreach service (81B5) will cover the additional costs.
This overspend was approved by Executive in September 2008 as
part of the Leisure and Museums restructure.

A saving is expected on the AIM recharge to this management unit

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 33,260

Operational costs will exceed the estimate due to weather conditions
and the impact of high levels of long term sickness.

There has been a restructure affecting this service and Cemeteries &
Crematorium (81B2), which will result in additional costs in this unit
and a corresponding saving in 81B2.

The post of Temporary Arboricultural Assistant has been vacant
resulting in reduced staffing costs in the tree management service
which will lead to a reduction in the amount required to be transferred
from the earmarked reserve.

The depreciation charge in this unit has decreased (see note 2.1)

MUSEUMS SERVICE (29,760)

Staff costs are expected to be less than the estimates as a result of
vacancies in this service.

Utility costs at the Royal Albert Memorial Museum (Royal Albert
Memorial Museum) are expected to exceed the estimate.

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) in respect of the Royal Albert

Page 60



81A8

81A9

81B2

81B3

81B5

Memorial Museum and the new museum store are expected to be
less than estimated. In addition a NNDR refund has been received in
respect of the RAMM due to a rates revaluation for a period prior to
the museum closing for redevelopment

Expenditure on display expenses, marketing and event promotion are
expected to be less than the estimate

There has been a reduction in income from a non-operational property
and from day admissions

The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1).

A saving is expected on the AIM recharge to this management unit
CONTRACTED SPORTS FACILITIES

Expenditure has been incurred in respect of backdated utility charges
in for the contracted sports facilities as per the Leisure Management
Contact, this additional expenditure will be funded from an earmarked
reserve

Additional costs have arisen in respect of NNDR.

The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1)
OTHER SPORTS FACILITIES

Savings are expected on the maintenance and Non-Domestic
Rates budgets at Clifton Hill Driving Range, this has been partially
offset by a reduction in rental income from the site as per the new
lease agreement.

CEMETERIES & CREMATORIUM

There has been a restructure affecting this service and Grounds
Maintenance (81A6), which will result in a saving in this unit and
corresponding additional costs in 81A6.

Income from burials is expected to be less than estimated, but this
will be substantially offset by increased income from headstone
fees and from the Gardens of Remembrance

The depreciation charge in this unit has decreased (see note 2.1)
PROPERTIES

Additional net income is expected to arise in this service.

The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1).

A saving is expected on the AIM recharge to this management unit
COMMUNITY OUTREACH

A saving is expected on staffing costs due to a vacant post; part of

this saving will be used to cover additional staff costs in the
Countryside Service (81A5).

Page 61

142,370

(3,430)

(27,580)

(20,790)

45,830



81B6

81B9

Income from the scrapstore will exceed the estimate; this
increased income is offset by an expected overspend on the
marketing and events budgets within the management unit.

The additional costs in respect of the Leisure and Museums
restructuring have been included.

Additional costs are expected in respect of the Splash Scheme, the
additional costs will be partly funded from an earmarked reserve.

RECYCLING 155,020
A saving has arisen on staffing costs due to vacant posts.

Income from the sale of recycled materials is expected to exceed
the estimates. It is however possible that the recent falls in prices
for recycled materials may affect this service in the remainder of
the financial year.

Additional income will arise from the Performance Reward Grant.
The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1)
ADMINISTRATION SERVICE 11,240

Savings in staffing costs were expected to arise as a result of the
introduction of the new corporate financial system, and a target
saving was incorporated into the estimate for this service.
However, the staffing reductions anticipated have not yet been fully
realised as a result of some initial problems with the system, and
the saving is therefore expected to be less than originally
expected.

Page 62



81C1 HOME AID (2,460)

Fee income in respect of disabled facility and renovation grant
work undertaken by the DCHA Care and repair team is expected to
exceed the budget. The fee income is due to ECC as part of the
Devon wide Home Improvement Agency contract.

81C2 ADVISORY SERVICES 76,290

Income from benefits is expected to exceed the estimates, partially
offset by increased costs of bed and breakfast accommodation. An
additional contracted property will mean that the serviced
temporary accommodation estimate will be exceeded; this
additional property is expected to reduce the use of bed and
breakfast accommodation in the long term.

Expenditure on handing back private sector leased properties is
expected to exceed the estimate; this additional expenditure has
been offset by an anticipated saving on reactive repairs to the
properties.

Additional expenditure on agency staff has arisen, which is partly
offset by savings from vacant posts.

Expenditure will be incurred in respect of the Private Sector
Housing Options scheme. This scheme offers incentives and
grants to private sector landlords to encourage them to let homes
to Council nominees; it also offers incentives to promote lodging
schemes and the use of empty homes in the private sector. The
additional expenditure in relation to this scheme is being funded by
the transfer of a commuted sum from the capital programme.

The depreciation charge in this unit has increased (see note 2.1)
81C3 HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 80,570

Additional expenditure will be incurred due to the implementation of
the Registered Social Landlord downsizing scheme; this
expenditure will be funded from the transfer of a commuted sum
from the capital programme.

Agency staffing costs in respect of the EXtralet scheme are
expected to exceed the budget.

A transfer from the Empty Homes Initiative earmarked reserve will
be made to cover additional expenditure incurred on staffing costs
for the initiative.

Expenditure in respect of the Housing Market Assessment Survey

has been incurred; this expenditure will be funded from an
earmarked reserve.

81C4 PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING (10,110)

Savings have arisen in respect of staffing and administrative costs.
Additional income is expected to arise from the issue of licences.

Page 63



81C6 CONTRACTS AND DIRECT SERVICES 3,410

The costs of this unit are fully recharged to its clients, and there is
therefore no direct impact on this committee. A depreciation
charge has been made to this unit for which there was no budget.

2008-2009 EXPECTED FINAL OUTTURN 17,225,570
EXPECTED TRANSFERS TO / FROM RESERVES (206,240)
AIM BUDGETS TO BE CARRIED FORWARD 110,000
EXPECTED TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 17,129,330

3. RECOMMENDED
That Scrutiny Committee — Community note this report.

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES
AND ENVIRONMENT

S:LP/Committee/309SCC12
24.2.09

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE
CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report

None

Page 64



000'ZL
000'0}
000'7}
000'69
(069'G¥)
(086°2)
(09g°11)
(060'G2)
(091'99)
(oze'ive)
000'01L}
(0s1'9L1)
(00+'€08)
0£2'892 0.5'§22°LL
0 0
oLv'e oLv'e
0 ovs'elL
(oii'on) 096'144
0.5'08 0€8'1€1°C
062'9.L 006't26
(09¥'2) 0£0'ce
orZLL orz'vl
0Z0'S 1 08¥'L08
0£8'Y 0£9'025
(064°02) 086'G¢
(086'22) 06¥'Gtv
(oev'e) 0z8'Lol
0/£'ZylL 0612281
(09.'62) 060265}
092Z'c€ 026'266°L
015've 096'G28
ove's 06.°162
(012'6L) 09Z'05%
(0v9'e6) 0¥9'2L£9'€
(0g1'08) 0/8'292'L
1SVYO3N04
ADNVRIVA N3NLLNO
1Svo3u04 ANIHAND

9418
£d18
VY18

0£€'6ZL°LL 013 SIAYISTH NO SINIFWIAOW HOH ONILSNray d314Y NdINLLNO

GV18 - 04/6002 OL AYVMHOL 4314y S139aNd WIV

€018
£V18
Gg18
9v1i8

6Y18 - STAYISTY AINUVINYEYI (WOHH) / OL SHIASNVHL

39VddITS WiV
SAONVINVA LNIWIAOW IAYISIA
SAONVRIVA TV1IdVO

FANLIANIdXT L3N

INFWNOYIANT/ALINNWNOD JOLO3HIa
SIADINYIS ONIATING ® LOVHINOD

JONVNILNIVIN SONVYT AYANNS
ONISNOH HO1D3S JIVAINA

o iUR aULJDO0 DLV

dIHSHAN LYV ONISNOH

SADINYTS AHOSIAAY

aiv 3NCH

3DIAYAS NOLLVHLSININGY
ONITOAD3H

HOVIYLNO ALINNWWOD
S311Ld3d0¥d

WNIHOLVNZYD B SAIYA1INI0
S3ILINIDVA S1H0dS A31LOVHINOD-NON
S3AILIMIOVL S1H0dS A310VHINOD
JOIAHIS SWNISNW

JONVNILNIVIN ANNOHO
JAISAHLINNOD ¥ SAVMYUILYM

LZ VANIOV 8 TYOINHOIL

AL34VS ® HLTV3H ‘G004 "ONISNION
SADIAYIS ONISNYITO

NOILO3LOYd TVLNIWNOHIANT

800Z ¥39W303A L€ Ol 800Z TRIdV LO

dIHSQYVYMILS
ALINNWINOD - 33LLIWINOD ANILNYEOS

L0418
9018

G018
$018

Jro

€018
[401%]
1018
6418
9418
G418
£d18
zgls
6V18
8v18
LVY18
9v18
Gv18
PVvig
£V18
[A AR
A%]

3402

0SZ',98'91L

(000'8)
(060°29)
ove 25691 05562 0617219791
0 0 0
0 0 0
ovg'es 0 ov8'el
0.9'182 006'CL 04191
092'160' 0 092'150'¢
019'g¥8 0 019'8¥8
06¢'GE 0 06¥'GE
000‘¢ 000°¢ 0
09¥'259 0 09%'269
ov8'viy 0 o¥8'vLiy
042'9G 0GL°) 020'6S
0L0°€Ly 00€'v2L 0LL'8v€
052's01 00S°L 0SL'€0}
028'62Z'L 005‘} 0z£'822'L
068'98G°L 002'09 051°926°}
099'v26°L 022'97 ovY'868°L
050°16L 000°L2 060'0LL
0SY'¥62 0 0SY'¥62
0.6'625 0 0.6'62S
08Z'1€L'E 089'6Z 009'G0.2'¢
000'€LE'} 0 000'€LE’L
13oang 13oang 13sang
a3asIAzd AYVINIWAddANS TVNNNY

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



1.1

2.1

2.2

Agenda ltem 19

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2008

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
STEWARDSHIP TO DECEMBER 2008

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise Members of any major differences by management unit to the outturn
forecast for the first nine months of the financial year up to 31 December 2008.

STEWARDSHIP TO 30 DECEMBER 2008
During this period the total of the variances indicate that there will be a net surplus of
£25,290 and this will be used to increase the Revenue Contributions to Capital works. It

is estimated that the working balance will remain at £2,848,591 at 31 March 2009.

The main variations by management unit are detailed below: £

2008-2009 ESTIMATED TRANSFER TO THE WORKING BALANCE 0

5A1

5A4

MANAGEMENT

There are saving on salaries due to various vacant posts between April (720)
and June, the Housing Operations Manager post was vacant until 1 July

2008. This has been partly offset by agency staff costs covering sickness

and short term vacancies.

The expected increase in utility costs has been reflected in the figures,
and costs in respect of tenants’ removal and legal expenses; tenant
participation; and equipment tools and materials are expected to exceed
the budget.

Transport costs are also expected to exceed the budget due to essential
user lump sum now being assigned to various posts. There is a reduction
in the costs that can be offset against the capital receipts pooling as a
result of the reduction in Right To Buy sales.

There is additional Supporting People Grant income in respect of
sheltered accommodation back dated to April 2003; this is due to
previous changes of tenancies.

REPAIRS FUND CONTRIBUTION
The overall savings from HRA services has enabled an increase in the 25,290
Revenue Contributions to Capital works associated with achieving the

Decent Homes Standard and fire risk works required on sheltered
accommodation

Page 67



85A6 CAPITAL CHARGES

7.130
Additional costs have been incurred in respect of the redemption of a
finance lease
85B1 GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY
(9,700)
There has been a small reduction in the HRA Subsidy payment for
2008/09.
85B2 INTEREST
There is an increase in investment interest as a result of the performance (22,000)
of the investment fund manager. It is estimated that there will be a
reduction in the mortgage interest as a result of additional early
redemptions in respect of mortgage debt.
2008-2009 SECOND QUARTER FORECAST INCREASE IN WORKING 0
BALANCE
3. ACTION PLAN

The budgets for recoverable staffing costs in respect of Right To Buy administration
will be further reduced to reflect the estimated reduction in RTB sales in 2009/10.

4, RECOMMENDED

That the Scrutiny Committee — Community note this report.

DIRECTOR CORPORATE SERVICES
DIRECTOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

S:PA/LP/ Committee/309SCC13
24.2.09

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE
COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:

1. None

Page 68



S|X’| xddy £100S60¢

165°'8Y8'C 165‘8¥8°C
0 0 0
0 0 ]
(000'22) (00€'89%) (00g'otP)
(00.'6) 098'GLY'y 09G'Gev'y
0 (0,9'G06't7L) (0,9'G06't7L)
0EL'L 0v9'€T 0159l
062'GC 0EL'19.'L Ov8'GEL L
0 091'6.2 091612
(ozL) 081'¥68'C 006'¥68'C

3 3 3
woworow  wmmo. 1opPne

Juaung jenuuy paroiddy

80 ¥39dIN3D3A Ol 80 THudV

aouejeg Bupjiopp
ainjipuadx3 JoN

aouejeg BujJopp ul aduelep
1s218)U|

ApISQNS JUSWUIBA0D)

sjuay

sabliey) jeyden

uonnqguuo) pun4 sieday
aoueusulepy spue Aipung
awabeuepy

dIHSQYVYM3LS LNNODJOV INNIAIY ONISNOH - AFLLININOD ANILNYDS

7998
cd48
1968
8Vvss8
ovea8
pva8
€va8
IVG8

apo9o

| XION3ddV

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



1.1

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agenda ltem 20

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY
10 MARCH 2009

NATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATOR RESULTS 2007/8
HOW EXETER’S RESULTS COMPARE

PURPOSE OF REPORT

A full analysis of Exeter’s performance indicator results for 2007/08 has been sent to
Members under a separate cover. This report provides an overview of the performance
of those services covered by this committee. The other two Scrutiny Committees will
receive a similar report covering services within their remit.

BACKGROUND

Exeter’'s performance indicator results for 2007/08 were published in the Corporate
Plan. The Audit Commission subsequently published audited comparative data in
December 2008.

The graphs contained within the detailed analysis compare Exeter’s results against
authorities in the Council’'s benchmarking group and therefore provide a comparison
against other broadly similar councils. (Audit Commission family grouping)

The graphs have been arranged in ascending order. Exeter’s results are highlighted on
each.

Results for BVPI 78a (Average time to process new benefit claims) and BVPI 78b
(Average time taken to process change in circumstances) are still being verified by the
Audit Commission and as a result, have not yet been published.

The Audit Commission uses national upper and lower quartile figures as benchmarks
against which to judge service performance. The detailed analysis also shows quartile
figures for all English district councils against each graph. Services should generally be
aiming to be in the top quartile (ie the best performing 25% of councils in the country).

RESULTS OVERVIEW

Exeter is in the top quartile for 19 indicators out of a total of 59 where comparisons are
possible (32%), compared to 20 out of 65 (30%) last year. It is in the bottom quartile for
10 indicators, compared with 9 last year.

This year has seen improvement in 25 indicators with 6 of these achieving a higher
quartile rating than last year. The 6 indicators which have achieved a higher quartile
rating are within the Community and Environment Directorate. However, 25 indicators
show a lower performance than last year, with 12 achieving a lower quartile rating than
last year. With the exception of Community Safety, there is only one indicator reported
to the Community Scrutiny Committee which falls in the bottom quartile.

Out of the 37 comparable indicators that fall within the remit of this Scrutiny Committee,
22 have improved since last year, 6 have stayed the same and 9 have poorer
performance. These are BVPIs 64, 66b, 184b, 202, 212, 86, 218a, 170a and 170b.
More detail is given below on each of these.

Page 71



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Empty Homes

The number of private sector vacant dwellings that are returned into occupation (BVPI
64) was 29 in 2007/08, compared with 31 in 2006/07. However, Exeter has remained in
the second national quartile for this indicator and is fourth in its family group. This
indicator will no longer be collected after 07/08.

Council Housing

4.20% of local authority tenants had more than seven weeks of gross rent arrears (BVPI
66b), compared with 4.06% in 2006/07. Exeter has remained in the second quartile, but
the actual percentage figure reported has increased for the last three years. The
percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks of gross rent arrears has marginally
increased because Exeter is committed to sustaining tenancies and providing a
supportive service. The actual arrears on housing rents are lower this year than last .

The percentage change in the proportion of non-decent homes (BVPI 184b) fell from
26.7% in 2006/07 to 18.2% in 2007/08, but still maintains Exeter’s position in the second
national quartile. The Council is still on track to achieve full Decent Homes compliance
by the target of December 2010, and this has been verified by the Department of
Communities and Local Government. This reflects the approach we are taking in
moving towards achieving decent homes standard.

The average time taken to re-let local authority housing (BVPI 212) increased from 24
days to 25 days, resulting in Exeter dropping from the top to the second quartile. This is
due to the extent of repairs that the Council undertakes between tenants.

Homelessness

The number of people sleeping rough on a single night (BVPI 202) in Exeter rose from
10 to 15in 2007/08. Exeter is still in the bottom national quartile. Lancaster and Lincoln
are top of the family group for this indicator, with zero figures. This is the only indicator
from the Community & Environment Directorate to fall within the bottom quartile.

Environment and Environmental Health

Out of the 17 comparable indicators reported under the headings of ‘Environment’ and
‘Environmental Health’, 12 have improved since last year, 3 have stayed the same and
2 have performed worse than last year.

The cost of waste collection per household (BVPI 86) has increased slightly from £49.43
in 2006/07 to £50.44 in 2007/08. Exeter remains in the second quartile.

Exeter investigated 90% of new reports of abandoned vehicles within 24 hours (BVPI
218a), falling from 93.10% in 2006/07. As a result, Exeter has dropped from the second
to the third quartile for this indicator. However, the percentage of abandoned vehicles
removed within 24 hours from the point at which the authority is legally entitled to
remove the vehicle rose from 97.65% in 2006/07 to 100% in 2007/08, moving Exeter
from the second to the top quartile. Both of these indicators will no longer be collected
after 2007/08.

Culture

With regard to museum visits (BVPI 170a), Exeter continues to remain in the top
quartile. However, the actual number of visits to/usage of museums dropped from 2371
per 1000 population in 2006/07 to 1920 in 2007/08. The Council anticipated a drop in

Page 72



performance due to the closure of the Royal Albert Memorial Museum (RAMM) and
lower targets were set to account for this.

3.13 The number of pupils in organised school trips visiting museums & galleries (BVPI 170c)
rose from 15617 in 2006/07 to 20400 in 2007/08 maintaining Exeter’s position in the top
quartile.

Community Safety

3.14 The City Council is a Responsible Authority agency within the Community Safety
Partnership (Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership). The measurement of
performance of CDRPs is by comparison with family groups, but the family group for
Exeter CDRP is different from the family group for Exeter City Council BVPIs. The
accompanying graph booklet therefore shows comparison with both family groups.

3.15 The number of domestic burglaries per 1,000 household (BVPI 126) dropped from 11.8
in 2006/07 to 10.5 in 2007/08. Exeter CDRP currently sits 4th in its family group (out of
14).

3.16 The number of violent crimes per 1000 population dropped from 21.7 in 2006/07 to 20.2
in 2007/08. Exeter CDRP reports the lowest number of violent crimes in its family

group.

3.17 There were 0.6 robberies per 1000 population (BVPI 127b) in Exeter, a slight decrease
from 0.7 in 2005/06.

3.18 Vehicle crime per 1000 population (BVPI 128) dropped from 13.3 in 2006/07 to 9.8 in
2007/08. Although Exeter remains in the bottom national quartile, it is a significant
improvement on last year.

3.19 ltis encouraging to note that all of the comparable community safety indicators have
improved since last year.

4, RECOMMENDED

(1) That Members consider the report and indicate whether they wish to receive
any further information on any particular issue(s).

HAZEL BALL
DIRECTOR COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

S:LP/Committee/309SCC14
24.2.09

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background Papers used in compiling the report:

1) National Performance Indicator Results - December 2008

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda ltem 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda ltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



	Agenda
	6 Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2009 - 2039
	309SCC4 Appx I & II HRA Business Plan Review 2009-2039

	7 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2009 -2015
	Proposed Programme

	8 Draft Empty Homes Strategy 2009 - 2014
	9 Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy - Annual Review
	10 Exeter Air Quality Strategy 2009-2014
	13 External Audit Report on the Council's Arrangements for managing risks from  Waste Management and Climate Change
	309SCC8 Appx I Report on Waste Management and Climate Change final 3

	14 Re-tendering of the Housing Responsive Maintenance Contracts
	309SCC15 Appx I Retender of Responsive Maintenance Contracts (3)

	15 PORCH : Prolific Offenders  Re-settlement through Co-ordinated Housing
	16 Allotment Strategy Review
	309SCC9 Appx I Action Plan v2

	18 Stewardship - Community to December 2008
	309SCC12 Appx I Q3 Appendix

	19 Stewardship - Housing Revenue Account to December 2008
	309SCC13 Appx I

	20 National Performance Indicator Results 2007/08 How Exeter's Results Compare
	21 Extralet Scheme Programme Report and Restructure
	Strategic Housing Services - Structures

	22 RAMM and the Rennaissance Programme

